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Financial Highlights
IR E

Revenue of the Group increased by 12.2% or RMB247.4 million to
RMB2,271.5 million for the Reporting Period (2021: RMB2,024.1
million), among which revenue from sales of human albumin solution
increased by approximately RMB283.9 million, mainly benefited from
the increase in sales volume.

Gross profit of the Group decreased by RMB59.1 million to RMB305.9
million for the Reporting Period (2021: RMB365.0 million), while gross
profit margin decreased from 18.0% in 2021 to 13.5% for the Reporting
Period. The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to the increase in the
purchasing costs which was as a result of the depreciation of the RMB
exchange rate against the USD.

Net profit of the Group decreased by 48.6% to RMB69.5 million for
the Reporting Period (2021: RMB135.1 million), primarily due to the
decrease in gross profit from sales of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, net profit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB69.5 million (2021: net profit RMB135.1
million), representing a decrease in net profit by RMB65.6 million.

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.03 for
the Reporting Period (2021: basic and diluted earnings per share
RMBO0.08).

The Board resolved to declare a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 of HK$0.98 cents (2021: final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of HK$ nil cents) per
ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HK$20,000,000 (2021:
HK$nil), has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting. The final dividend has been calculated by reference to
the 2,032,890,585 issued shares outstanding as at the date of this
report.
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Financial Highlights B1#$H =

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 2022

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTIT ARETT AR¥TR

Operating results REXEE
Revenue Wk 952,957 1,176,409 2,049,803 2,024,055 2,271,505
Gross profit EF 221,025 219,847 273,826 364,950 305,868
Profit/(loss) before tax B RTEF] (EE) (272,015) 42 955 135,955 167,387 99,292
Profit/(loss) for the year RELEHA,(EE) (280,615) 23,550 118,137 135,083 69,462
Profit/(loss) attributable to RRAEE AFENL (280,614) 23,552 118,137 135,083 69,462
owners of the Company wm A (EE)
Profitability &F|
Gross margin ESVIES 23.2% 18.7% 13.4% 18.0% 13.5%
Net profit/(loss) margin bR, (E518) = (29.4%) 2% 5.8% 6.7% 3.1%
Revenue Profit/(loss) Attributable to
Wz Owners of the Company
AATEE AEGERFR,(BER)
RMB’'000
Pyt RMB’000
ARETTT ARKETTT 118,137 132083
2,400,000 - ) 049 503 2,271,505 100000 - 69,462
L ,049,803 2,024,055
2,100,000 50000 [~ 23,552
1,800,000 |
O T T T T
1,500,000 |- 50000 F
1200.000 - 1,176,409
! ! 952,957 -100000 [~
900,000 B _1 50000 —
600,000 B _200000 —
300,000 B _250000 —
0 1 1 1 1

-300000 - (280,614)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 2022F

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETIT ARETT AR¥ETR

Financial position BRI

Total assets BEE 611,762 832,344 1,252,053 1,232,766 1,424,333

Total equity RS 22,723 46,292 164,429 374,886 603,812

Total liabilities FCS=RE 589,039 786,052 1,087,624 857,880 820,521

Equity attributable to owners ~ ZNATHEA A 23,629 47,200 165,337 374,886 603,812
of the Company FE(L TR

Cash and cash equivalents* Be MRS EEY 80,343 224,756 143,765 381,067 436,996
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
shareholders for their concern and support to the Company, and hereby
present the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

2022 is the third year of the Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic.
Looking back on this year, the ups and downs of the epidemic and
changes in prevention and control policies have affected the hearts of the
people across the country and profoundly affected the development of all
walks of life in China. Whether it is the continuous occurrence of “city-wide
lockdown” and other social distancing measures implemented across the
country, or the serious interruption of logistics under normalized pandemic
control measures, it has brought enormous pressure and challenges to the
pharmaceutical distribution industry in China. How to ensure the smooth
supply of pharmaceutical products under the continuous outbreak of
local epidemics and strict prevention and control policies has become a
common problem faced by major pharmaceutical companies. However,
with the concerted efforts of the Group’s employees and the cooperation
of all partners, the Group still successfully completed the annual sales
target and distribution tasks, ensuring the normal operation of the its
main business.

At the end of 2022, with the major shift in epidemic prevention and
control policies and China’s reopening, people’s lives and the operation
of various industries have gradually returned to normal. After the impact
of the epidemic, the pressure on the supply side and supply chain of the
pharmaceutical industry has gradually eased. We believe that in 2023,
the Group’s pharmaceutical distribution business will also usher in new
opportunities, and we will continue to work hard in our market segments
and create higher performance.

Steady Growth of Blood Products Sales and
Marketing Network Covering Key Hospitals Across
the Country

During the Reporting Period, the annual batch release volume of human
albumin solution is 67.7 million vials, representing an increase of 6.4%
over last year. The proportions of imported albumin and domestic albumin
are 62.2% and 37.8% respectively, almost the same as last year. As
the overseas epidemic gradually eased in 2022, the growth of imported
albumin also began to recover. In the first half of the year 2021, the
deterioration of the COVID-19 epidemic in the United States led to a
sharp decline in the plasma collection volume of major import companies.
This situation has been rapidly alleviated in 2022, and we expect the
supply growth rate in 2023 to significantly exceed that in 2022.
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Chairman'’s Statement X E#RE

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s sales of human albumin
solution amounted to RMB2,257.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB283.9 million or approximately 14.4% compared to
2021.

In terms of marketing business, the Company further adjusted and
optimized the sales channels for products entering the terminal compared
with last year. In the past year, the marketing network of our products has
covered large-scale key hospitals in major cities across the country, and
has further penetrated into hospitals in prefectures and second-tier and
third-tier cities with the cooperation of various sub-distributors. During the
Reporting Period, the proportion of the sales of our Company’s products
in terminal hospitals has grown significantly compared with last year. In
2023, the Company will continue to implement the marketing strategy
of focusing on the terminal hospital market, supplemented by retail
pharmacies, and strive for greater market coverage and sales channel
share.

Continuous Research and Development of Medical
and Beauty Products

In September 2021, the Group started the project development of
injectable polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler (*Girl Needle”) with
Beijing Nuokangda, with a planned investment of RMB88.5 million.
This product is the latest non-surgical medical aesthetic product, which
has immediate filling effect, can promote collagen hyperplasia within a
certain period of time, and achieve a long-term continuous repair function
to maintain the youthfulness and firmness of the face and body. The
Group established a wholly-owned subsidiary — Chengdu Hengmeisheng
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Hengmeisheng”) on January 26, 2022,
and rented a 4,300-square-meter factory building in Tianfu International
Biological City, Chengdu High-tech Zone as a pilot production base.
After organizing expert evaluation, design, environmental assessment,
and safety assessment, the construction started in June 2022. After
five months, the internal structure transformation of the factory
was completed, the installation, commissioning, and verification of
engineering equipment and testing instruments were completed, and
the PCL biological material pilot production workshop, PCL microsphere
preparation workshop, central laboratory and testing center were built.
Based on the above, the Chengdu Hengmeisheng has met the pilot
production conditions for Class Il medical devices.

REPAREBAMAEQ I REEBAEARE
2,257 2B BT 2021 EEEHARE2839HE
TC  HIEX)14.4% °
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ETHERELER -

BXERISETSR
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Chairman'’s Statement T E#RE

In November 2022, the Group entered into the Secret Needle
Technological Development Agreements with Beijing Nuokangda to
cooperate in the research and development of the secret needle and
the secret needle polycaprolactone filling material for the Company at a
consideration of RMB53.0 million. It is expected that the secret needle
Technology Development Agreement will be completed within 5 years.
The layout of secret needles this time will be the second major step for
the Group to accelerate the improvement of its core competitiveness in
the field of aesthetic medicine industry.

Continuously Improving Corporate Governance
During the year when the COVID-19 epidemic continued and the
prevention and control policies were constantly changing, the Group
continued to promote the adjustment of sales policies and further
optimisation measures, and continued to penetrate and develop new
terminal hospitals. With the stable development of the terminal market,
the Company’s adaptability to policy adjustments and market changes in
the pharmaceutical industry has greatly increased. While actively building
the internal system of the Group, the Company is also carrying out the
management and training of talents. Through this series of measures, the
sales team for the products of the Company is continuously optimized.
The Company will also continue to strengthen the construction of
internal control and risk management systems, pay close attention to
corporate social responsibility, and practice corporate social responsibility
in group management. Based on the good cooperation between the
Group and its supplier Octapharma, in 2022, the Group has obtained the
exclusive distribution rights in the market of mainland China for human
albumin produced by its supplier Octapharma’s manufacturing plant in
Lingolsheim, France. With the launch of sales of new products in 2023,
we believe that the Group's sales performance in 2023 will reach a new
high. At the same time, the Group's projects in the medical aesthetics
industry are also progressing smoothly in 2022. It is believed that the
medical aesthetics market with great potential will contribute new profit
growth to the Group in the near future.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
heartfelt thanks to all shareholders, customers and partners for their full
trust and support to the Group, as well as to all the employees of the
Group for their efforts and contributions. The Group will seize the market
opportunities of the post-covid period, continuously enhance its own
competitiveness, and create maximum value for shareholders, customers
and stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

25 April 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of RMB2,271.5 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of RMB247.4 million, or 12.2% as
compared to RMB2,024.1 million in 2021, which could be further
analysed as follows:

gy JE)E

Wz
AEBERREPRSREARE2271 588 * &
2021 FMARE2,024 1 BB MARKE24748 8
TC 0 EIE12.2% - AE—FS DT ¢

2022 2021
20225 20214

RMB million % of revenue RMB million % Of revenue

AR¥EER Wbt  ARBAST LG g

Human albumin solution AMAEBESIR 1) 2,257.2 99.4% 1,973.3 97.5%
Antibiotics nEZ 2) 2.1 0.1% 50.8 2.5%
Medical beauty service BER 3) 12.2 0.5% - -
Total A&t 2,271.5 100.0 2,024.1 100.0

1) During the Reporting Period, revenue of human albumin solution stood at
RMB2,257.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 14.4% or
RMB283.9 million as compared with 2021. Such increase in revenue mainly
benefited from the increase in the supply volume and the sales volume of
human albumin.

2)  During the Reporting Period, revenue from sales of antibiotics further
decreased to RMB2.1 million. Because the Group's antibiotics products were
not included in the catalogue of centralized drugs, the sales declined sharply.

3)  During the Reporting Period, revenue generated from medical beauty

services amounted to RMB12.2 million, representing the revenue from Demei
Company which was acquired by the Group during the Reporting Period.

1 0 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022
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Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of RMB1,965.6 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of RMB306.5 million, or 18.5% as
compared with RMB1,659.1 million in 2021, which was in line with the
increase in sales revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB305.9 million, representing a decrease of RMB59.1 million as
compared with RMB365.0 million in 2021, in which the gross profit of
the human albumin solution decreased by RMB64.5 million and the gross
profit of the antibiotics decreased by RMB3.5 million which partially offset
by the increase of gross profit of medical beauty services of RMB8.9
million. The gross profit margin decreased from 18.0% in 2021 to
13.5% for the Reporting Period. The decrease was primarily caused by its
increased purchase cost which was as a result of the depreciation of the
RMB exchange rate against the USD.

Other income and gains

During the Reporting Period, other income and gains of the Group
amounted to RMB25.2 million, representing an increase of RMB14.3
million as compared with the 2021, which was mainly caused by the
increase in exchange gains of RMB16.0 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group's selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB117.0 million, representing an increase
of RMB11.6 million as compared with the corresponding period of 2021.
The increase was mainly due to the increase of marketing promotion
expenses, which was in line with the increase in sales.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of RMB81.4 million, representing an increase of RMB15.4 million as
compared with the corresponding period of 2021. The increase was
mainly due to the increase of staff cost.

Other expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other expenses of
RMB6.5 million, representing a decrease of RMB0.6 million as compared
with the 2021, which was mainly due to the decrease in foreign exchange
loss.
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Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded finance costs of
RMB18.3 million, representing a decrease of RMB10.8 million as
compared with the 2021, which was mainly due to the repayment of the
other interest-bearing loans by the Group and accordingly the relevant
interest expense decreased by RMB8.0 million.

Income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the income tax expense decreased by
RMB2.5 million or 7.7% to RMB29.8 million as compared with the 2021.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease of the Group’s gross profit.

Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded the net profit of
RMB69.5 million, which decreased by RMB65.6 million as compared with
RMB135.1 million in 2021.

Inventories

Inventory balances amounted to RMB88.1 million as of 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: RMB61.3 million), representing an increase
of RMB26.8 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2021.
Such increase was due to the increase in the inventory balance of human
albumin solution.

Due to the increase of the sales volume during the Reporting Period, the
Group's average inventory turnover days decreased by 19 days from 33
days in 2021 to 14 days for the Reporting Period.

Trade and bills receivables

The balance of trade receivables amounted to RMB350.2 million as of
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB213.2 million). The main
reason for the increase of RMB137.0 million as compared with the year-
end balance of 2021 was because with the increase of sales the Group
granted the credit term to some major customers.

The balance of bills receivables as of 31 December 2022 was RMB1.1
million (31 December 2021: RMBO0.4 million), representing an increase
of RMBO0.7 million as compared to the year-end balance of 2021. The
increase was primarily resulted from the increase in sales of human
albumin solution.
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Prepayments, deposits, other receivables and other assets
As of 31 December 2022, the prepayments, deposits, other receivables
and other asset amounted to RMB141.0 million (31 December 2021:
RMB313.0 million), representing a decrease of RMB172.0 million as
compared with the year-end balance of 2021. The decrease was mainly
due to the decrease of the prepayment of deposits for issuance of the
letter of credit of RMB35.3 million and the decrease of the prepayment of
the refundable deposit for distribution right of RMB127.5 million.

Trade and bills payables

As of 31 December 2022, trade and bills payables amounted to RMB408.0
million (31 December 2021: RMB422.9 million), representing a decrease
of RMB14.9 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2021,
which was mainly due to the decrease in payables for the purchase of
human albumin solution.

Other payables and accruals

As of 31 December 2022, other payables and accruals amounted to
RMB117.9 million (31 December 2021: RMB53.4 million), representing an
increase of RMB64.5 million as compared with the year-end balance of
2021. The increase was mainly due to the increase payables in relation to
(i) the import agent services by RMB72.7 million; (ii) the deposits received
from distributors by RMB7.4 million; (iii) the other tax payables by RMB2.9
million and (iv) the payroll and welfare payable by RMB2.4 million. The
increase was partially offset by the decrease of (i) the payables of the
consulting and professional fee by RMB9.3 million and (ii) the other
miscellaneous payables by RMB11.5 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&7:m & 24

Borrowings (S
As of 31 December 2022, the Group has borrowings of RMB181.7 million ~ #%E 2022412 8310 * "EBHERLA AR

in total, with details set out below:

181.78&7T ' #FBIIRAT

2022 2021
20224F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Current; mE

Bank loans IRITER 180,806 80,806
Other borrowings HER = 127,514

Non-current:; JEE
Bank loans RITER 922 2,244
Other borrowings HABER = 130,000
Total A5t 181,728 340,564

Gearing ratio

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing ratio was

calculated as follows:

BERER

RBEHR - AEENBELRFAEDT

2022
20224

RMB’000
ARET T

2021
20214
RMB’000
AREFTT

Bank and other borrowings IRITREALERR 181,728 340,564
Trade and bills payables B RN RERENRE 407,988 422,933
Other payables and accruals At JE T FRIE R ST RIE 117,927 53,424
Lease liabilities HEBE 10,684 384
Tax payables e BEE 5,437 12,826
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  ZAFEE ABZNETEE 19,078 -
Less: Bank balances and cash W SRITEBREIRS (329,144) (326,052)
Less: Pledged deposits B DIERRER (107,852) (55,015)
Net debt@ B EEREe 305,846 449,064
Equity B 603,812 374,886
Equity and net debt® =R BEFEY 909,658 823,950
Gearing ratio@» BfELEe 33.6% 54.5%
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Liquidity and capital resources
The following table sets out a condensed summary of the Group’s

consolidated statement of cash flows during the Reporting Period:

RBEEREARRIR
TER/RAEENBENANGERSRERG AR

E:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARET T AREETTT
Net cash from operating activities KRBTSR E F5E 1) 75,081 305,712
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBMAE 2 2) (119,270) (22,727)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BEEE TG (PR )RS I E5E 3) 35,043 (97,108)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBEEEBMORD), N
equivalents HRE (9,146) 185,877
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INEER B E - FEE 12,238 (3,590)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYIRERIRSEEY
of the year 4) 326,052 143,765
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERIBERIBELEED 4) 329,144 326,052
Notes: Biat -
1) Net cash from operating activities 1) RETHIEHSFE

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow generated from
operating activities amounted to approximately RMB75.1 million (for the year
2021: net cash inflow of RMB305.7 million), which was mainly due to the
increase in cash from sales and decrease in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets during the Reporting Period as compared with prior year.

2)  Net cash used in investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash used in investing activities
amounted to approximately RMB119.3 million (for the year 2021: net cash
outflow of RMB22.7 million), which was mainly due to the purchase of items
of property, plant and equipment and acquisition of subsidiaries.

3)  Net cash from financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow from financing
activities amounted to approximately RMB35.0 million (for the year 2021: net
cash outflow of RMB97.1 million), which mainly due to the cash inflow from
the proceeds of issue of new shares of RMB159.5 million.

2)

3)

RBERA - AEBELEFPAFRERAFELY
BARETSABETQ021F : RERAFHEARKE
305.7H&L) TERMUNEFREFNHEERS
RSB IMARTAN TR - B FRREMEER
DRTEL o

BREEHMARSFER

RRERAR - AEEREZHAARSFEHNAAR
¥119388L(20214F - BemE FHEARK 2278
BL) FEARBEDE - BEREHEEE URKE
MEAR -

MEEBBIHSFE
RBERR  AEEREIHRESAANFBEOAAR
¥35.0E8L(20214F « BentFEARKI71H

BT TEHARBITHROMESRERESRAARE
159.58&TT °
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4)

The following table sets out the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the Reporting Period:

Denominated in RMB UAREHE
Denominated in US$ PAZETTEHE
Denominated in HK$ LA TTETE
Denominated in C$ LAngE AR TEHE
Denominated in $$ LA I3 TR HE

4)  TRENAREENRERROES MREFEY -

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREETTT
284,759 257,299
69,328 74,138
72,120 47,887

- 1,704

10,789 39
436,996 381,067

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies. Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents are held in major financial institutions located in Mainland
China. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and the senior management of the Company reviews and
assesses the creditworthiness of the Group's existing customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors its exposure
to a shortage of funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows from operations.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group is mainly denominated in RMB.

Foreign currency risk
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for certain items below:

. Certain bank balances are denominated in US$, HK$, S$; and

o Purchase of products from overseas suppliers and relevant trade and
bills payables are denominated in US$.

The Group manages the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies by

foreign currency forward and option contracts, and does not enter into
any hedging transactions.
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Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets
As at the date of this Report, the Group does not have any future plans
for material capital assets.

The Acquisition of Demei Company

On 20 January 2022, the Company (or its designated affiliate) entered
into a letter of intent with all beneficial owners of Deyang Demei Medical
Aesthetic Clinic (General Partnership)* (“Demei Clinic”) in relation to
potential acquisition of the equity interest in the target after Demei Clinic
completes restructuring and conversion.

On 22 March 2022, Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited Company* (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. Huang Zhijian (a
connected person of the Company, being the son of Mr. Huang, an
executive Director, chairman of the Board and substantial shareholder
of the Company) entered into (i) each of the respective equity transfer
agreements between Demei Company being the target after Demei Clinic
completes restructuring and conversion, and other parties, and (i) a loan
agreement (with a set of VIE contractual arrangements to be entered
into upon the completion under the said equity transfer agreements) for
purpose of acquiring the entire equity interest in Demei Company.

On 10 May 2022, the completion under each of the equity transfer
agreements took place, and a series of agreements under the VIE
contractual arrangements were entered into. Accordingly, Sichuan Sinco
Biotech Limited Company indirectly held 70% equity interest in the Demei
Company and obtain, via the VIE contractual arrangements (under which
Mr. Huang Zhijian was the registered owner of Deyang Renshangren
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (“Renshangren”) at the relevant
time and Renshangren directly held 30% equity interests in the Demei
Company), control over and the economic benefits derived from the
remaining 30% equity interest in the Demei Company.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20
January 2022, 22 March 2022 and 10 May 2022.

On 19 August 2022, the Group entered into a series of agreements for
purpose of changing the registered holder of the entire equity interest
in Renshangren from Mr. Huang Zhijian (a connected person of the
Company) to Ms. Liu Keping. For details of the aforesaid change in
registered holder of Renshangren, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 22 August 2022.

AREAREREAEEE
WS RE  AEETEANEAARAENER
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Capital expenditure
The following table sets out the Group’s capital expenditure for the
periods indicated:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

BEWE  BELERE

BRBX
TRHEI A EERATHARNE AR -

2022
20224

2021
20214
RMB’000
AREETIT
23,522

RMB’000
ARET T

52,691

52,691 23,522

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

Pledge of assets
As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the Group's pledged
assets were set out as follows:

HARBE
R2022F12A318 » AEEBEENEAKAGRE -

BEEKHA
M2022F 128318 - AEBEERFEENREES
FET

31 December
2021
20214
12H31H
RMB’000
ARETTT

31 December
2022
20225

12A31H
RMB’'000

AR¥TT

For obtaining bank and other borrowings FRESRIT R EMIER
— Buildings —&F 70,999 73,625
— Inventories —FE 38,982 56,339
For issuance of letters of credit, billings and other AR ERE AREZREM
- Bank balances —RTTAE R 107,852 55,015

Dividend

The Board resolved to declare a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022 of HK$0.98 cents (2021: final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2021 of HK$ nil cents) per ordinary share,
in an aggregate amount of HK$20,000,000 (2021: HK$nil), has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend
has been calculated by reference to the 2,032,890,585 issued shares
outstanding as at the date of this report.

18

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022

BRE
BESREVEZ2022F12A31MBILFESTRAH
& B AR @A%0.9848 L (20214 « HZ2021612 A
NHIEFEMRBREZHEN) - 4%520,000,000
BIT(20214F « TEL) - ZREAANRRETEH
BRBRRAEERRERS EHETAIEE - KERE
2EN AL B EAEITEIMNY2,032,890,585 /% £, B
TR ETE -



BUSINESS REVIEW

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical imports,
the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for small and medium-
sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers. Meanwhile, the Group
is the only MPCM services provider for imported blood products in the
PRC, leveraging quality product portfolio that focuses on blood products
and nationwide marketing and promotion network. The Group’s existing
product portfolio encompasses many quality products produced by small
and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers, covering
multiple therapeutic areas such as anti-infective drugs and blood products,
digestive system, and cardiovascular system. Included in such products
are blood products (which are in short supply in the Chinese market) and
prescription drugs which can meet the high demand for high-quality drugs
with excellent clinical results among medical institutions and patients.

1. Core Products

Human albumin solution

Dating back to the early 1940s, blood products have undergone
decades of fast development. Such products have grown from
Human Albumin at the very beginning to the current 20-plus
categories in three series, encompassing such sub-categories as
Human Albumin, immune globulin and blood coagulation factors.
Given the approval granted to new indications and an improved rate
of diagnosis, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics Association (PPTA)
predicts that the market demand for blood products will retain a
high-speed growth around the globe. In these two years, as many
new plasma collection stations have been put into service, the
amount of plasma collection increased every year and production
capacity of domestic manufacturers also increased rapidly. As the
largest sales category in the market of blood products in the PRC,
Human Albumin is the only kind of blood product allowed to be
imported at the present, and its batch release of imported and
domestic categories maintains a rapid growth every year. In 2022,
the annual batch release amounted to 67.7 million vials (2021:
63.7 million vials), among which the percentages of imported
and domestic categories were 62.2% and 37.8% respectively.
Manufactured by Octapharma, a global leading manufacturer
of blood products, and included as a Category B product in the
National Reimbursement Drug List (NRDL), the human albumin
solution operated by the Group is used to remedy the shock caused
by hypovolemia, remove edema and poisonous substances, and
treat neonatal hyper-bilirubinemia. Based on the batch release of
the human albumin solution in the PRC in 2022, the market share
of the human albumin solution manufactured by Octapharma was
approximately 11.2%.

E3E)
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Marketing Network Development

The Group provides its marketing service through its internal teams
and their cooperation with third-party promoters. Hence, one of
the Group's key development strategies is to continuously expand
the marketing network and enhance distributor and promotor
management. During the Reporting Period, the Group took “Flexible,
Professional and Efficient” as its objective, and strove to develop
its marketing team in respect of the ability of quickly responding
to market environment changes and executing operational plans
with high efficiency. Furthermore, the Group sorted out its human
resources in each division. The marketing team had its structure
streamlined and its performance management further refined, with
optimized allocation of sales resources that are invested in each
product and higher efficiency of business operation.

At the same time, the implementation of “Two-Invoice System” took
place at a faster pace in each province. To positively respond to such
implementation, the existing structure of distributor network was
comprehensively sorted out. Based on sufficient communication with
its distributors, the Group has further extended its sales channels
to end markets through the collaboration between its internal sales
team and local distributors. Originally, promoters were allocated by
region. Now, the promoters are matched with each hospital of the
region concerned, which enables the Group’s sales network to reach
the end market. Besides, the coverage of the network has also been
extended from large top Class-Ill hospitals to provincial, municipal
and county hospitals, to keep improving market penetration, thereby
establishing a precision management system that each hospital will
have its respective promoters.

In addition, the Group has further improved the direct participation
of its internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
In this regard, approaches include regularly training third-party
promoters on product knowledge, hosting or taking part in medical
or pharmaceutical conferences, symposiums and product seminars
to directly partake in the academic promotion activities of products,
and extend the opinion leadership network for the main therapeutic
areas of products. All the approaches serve to ensure accurate and
timely delivery of product information to doctors. In addition to
product promotion, the Group has taken the initiative to invite third
party promoters from across the country to discuss and interpret the
major impact of national policies, to increase the added value and
attraction of the Group's training.
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Cold Chain Storage Facility

Considering the future demand for business expansion and the
significant demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage
and delivery of blood products and bio-products, the Group has
constructed a cold chain storage facility in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The Group has completed the first
phase of its cold chain storage facility (15,000 square meters), which
can satisfy the Group's storage demand and provide better control
for the quality and safety of the blood products in our product
portfolio. Additionally, the Company will be able to provide third
parties with high quality pharmaceutical cold-chain storage services
upon completing the second-phase construction, which will be a
new business unit of the Group.

Research and Development

The Group has entered into a collaboration agreement with the
China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco 1",
a new realgar-based chemical medicine for treating acute
promyelocytic leukemia. The collaboration aims for the upstream
extension of the Group’s business and the future provision of a new
medicine for patients in the therapeutic area. The Group is currently
making efforts in designing and building a pilot plant for pilot
experiments.

In September 2021, the Group announced an investment of
RMB88.5 million to cooperate with Beijing Nuokangda to develop
polycaprolactone microsphere facial fillers for injection, namely “Girl
Needle”. As of the date of this report, the transformation of the
pilot workshop and the installation, commissioning and verification
of engineering equipment and related instruments have been
completed. A pilot production workshop for PCL biomaterials, a
workshop for PCL microsphere preparations, a central laboratory and
a testing center have been built. Based on the above, the Company
has satisfied and qualified the pilot production conditions for Class
Il medical devices. In November 2022, the Group entered into the
Technology Development Agreement with Beijing Nuokangda,
and once again cooperated in the research and development of
secret needle and secret needle polycaprolactone filling materials,
at a consideration of RMB53.0 million. The preliminary work of the
project has started in an orderly manner.

RER R

ZRIANEESREBERFT RIAR AR MAR
i EMEMERHE  ERRAENBEELRE
MEARBNR  REBED)IIERBTERER
RTRERHERE -ERINE—HLEAR
#6(15,000F 75 K) AR R AR EE SNA T
o AR AR EmA A T IMRE R EE
ZF  FEHRRRTRAQARNAE=FIR
] VE B SRARIRT - ERAKEHN

DL

NS5 B H eh B e ER RHERe rh BE ST P RT ML A 1R 1
& RABEUEREARIACREY Sinco 1] - 2
R R R AR SRS R R AAK A mm
R EEY) - AEIHS R B E R LR R
i RO R BRMF R R EE - BA
EHEZ A TR PERAERURARAME
g o

2021F9R - AEEEMIREARKESSEET
S R REA R BB C NBEERAE A
EFRAE - Bl Det] c BEAWEE - B4R
PR BEMENRENR TREERBEEENE
= ARAEBRE o BT PCLAEYM B R AL
EEM - PCLMEBMER - RLEREMR
AR o R E - AREABUEFE I EEE
EMH PR AEERMS - R202F 118 - A%E
B AR ERE SRR AL R SR A 8155
REEREL RS A RS B AERET A
REAARKESIOESE L - HEAHTIERLRH
MR FriETT o

2022 8 EMEBEERARLA 21



FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

In 2022, the continuous outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic and the
continuous changes in epidemic prevention and control policies have
caused great difficulties and challenges to all pharmaceutical companies
including the Group. The Group has also mobilized resources from all
parties to ensure the smooth development of business and achievement
of annual business goals. At the end of 2022, there have been major
adjustments to prevention and control policies, China has ushered in the
reopening after the epidemic, and the operation of various industries
has gradually returned to normal. Looking ahead to 2023, the corporate
structure and product structure in the post-epidemic era will become
more differentiated, industry integration will accelerate, and opportunities
and challenges will coexist. Driven by factors such as population aging,
increased health awareness, changes in the spectrum of diseases, and
the application of emerging technologies, the rigid demand to promote
the development of China's pharmaceutical industry will exist for a long
time. As an important livelihood industry in China, the pharmaceutical
and health industry still has strong growth momentum and huge rigid
demand.

On the one hand, the epidemic in the past three years and the rapid
outbreak of Omicron at the end of the year 2022 have profoundly
affected the public’s medical awareness. All regions of the country also
ushered in the first wave of concentrated infections at the end of 2022,
and people’s demand for medical resources continued to increase. Due to
the clinical necessity of human albumin and other blood products and the
shortage of supply determined by the properties of their raw materials,
there is no corresponding substitute product in the short term, and their
demand is expected to remain strong for a long time.
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On the other hand, the Girl Needle project in cooperation with Beijing
Nuokangda is in the process of handover of process technology and
analytical methods. It is expected to complete the pilot test and clinical
drug production in March 2023, and complete the registration test,
biological test and clinical registration and commence clinical research
in the second half of 2023. In the meanwhile, the Secret Needle project
is also advancing in an orderly manner, and the material test has been
completed so far. It is expected to complete small test, pilot test and
pharmacological pre-test of the Secret Needle by the end of 2023. In
addition, Chengdu Hengmeisheng entered into a cooperation agreement
with the School of Polymer Science and Engineering of Sichuan University
(“Sichuan University”) on the joint establishment of the “Chengdu
Hengmeisheng Medical Polymer Materials Research and Development
Center”. Focusing on the Group's development strategy, Sichuan
University provides the Group with technical support for the research of
new polymer materials and continuous talent output, making the research
and development center reach the domestic advanced level. In the future,
the Group will, as always, adhere to the concept of comprehensive health,
deeply cultivate technology research in the medical aesthetics industry,
and continue to open up new prospects.

Apart from the above, the Group will continue to enhance the
development of its internal control system and risk management, pay
much attention to and fulfill its corporate social responsibilities throughout
the Group'’s governance. The Group will offer its staff a great platform for
career development, and keep working to create a greater value for the
Shareholders.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 231 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group were RMB30.7
million (2021: RMB17.6 million).

The Group’s employee remuneration policy is determined by factors such
as remuneration in respect of the local market, the overall remuneration
standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate operating efficiency
and employee performance. The Group conducts performance appraisals
once every year for its employees, the results of which are applied
in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments. The Group's
employees are considered for annual bonuses according to certain
performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance contributions
are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance with the
relevant PRC regulations.
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The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness and improve customer service quality. The Group did
not experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Group adopted a share option scheme to recognize the
contribution by certain employees of the Group, and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for their continuing support in the
operation and development of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the Group which
may have material and adverse impact on the Group’s performance or
operation are summarized below. There may be other principal risks and
uncertainties in addition to those set out below which are not known to
the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents.

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group’s purchase of products from
the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$, and certain items of
bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings and bonds are
denominated in US$ and HK$.

o Decrease in profit margin due to increase in cost, decrease in selling
price and intensified competition.

o Experiencing prolonged delays or significant disruptions to the
supply of the products.

The Company believes that risk management is essential to the Group's
efficient and effective operation. The Company’s management assists
the Board in evaluating material risk exposure to the Group’s business,
participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and ensures such measures are properly implemented
in daily operational management.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDER

Human resources are one of the most important assets of the Group. The
Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a clear
career path as well as comprehensive and professional training courses. In
addition, the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance
based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from overseas
suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and
then generates revenue by on-selling them to hospitals and pharmacies
through distributors and deliverers. Our suppliers or their sales agents
have granted us the exclusive operating rights to market, promote and
manage sales channels for their products in China. The Group maintains
a stable and long-term relationship with its suppliers by providing them
access to the growing Chinese market with steady sales growth.

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors or deliverers,
who on-sell the products to hospitals and pharmacies directly. The
Group maintains stable and long-term relationship with its distributors or
deliverers by providing them guidance, training and support to carry out
more marketing and promotion activities in targeted fields.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM for imported pharmaceutical
products, a line of business that does not have material impact on the
environment. The key environmental impact from the Group's operation
is related to electricity, water and paper consumption. The Group is fully
aware of the importance of sustainable environmental development, and
has implemented the following measures to encourage environmental
protection and energy conservation:

o Promoting paperless office
o Encouraging low-carbon commuting
e Ensuring reasonable energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, we did not incur any material cost of
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's business and operations are subject to related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group have complied with
all related laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC, which would have significant impact on
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT FINANCING EVENT AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

2022 Placing of new Shares under general mandate

In order to capture the market opportunities of medical aesthetic
products and to develop its own center to develop, produce and sell
medical aesthetic products gradually, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “2022 Placing”) with Silverbricks Securities
Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”) on 7 December 2021, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue an aggregate
of 160,000,000 Shares (the “Placing Shares”), and the Placing Agent
agreed to procure not less than six independent individuals, institutional
or other professional investors (the “Placees”) to subscribe for, on a best
effort basis, an aggregate of 160,000,000 Placing Shares at the placing
price of HK$1.29 per Placing Share, with an aggregate nominal value of
HK$16,000. The Placing Price of HK$1.29 per Placing Share represents a
discount of approximately 19.38% to the closing price of HK$1.60 per
Share as quoted on the HKSE on 7 December 2021, being the date of the
Placing Agreement.

The net proceeds from the 2022 Placing, after deduction of the
commission for the placing and other related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$194.9 million, at a net price (which is calculated by
dividing the net proceeds by the number of Placing Shares) of HK$1.22.
The Company intends that as to:

(@) approximately 40% of the net proceeds of the 2022 Placing
(approximately HK$78.0 million) will be used for relevant costs
and expenses incurred for the development of polycaprolactone
microsphere facial filler and its materials for injection, including but
not limited to development of experimental workshop, research and
development equipments and factories construction investment; and

approximately 60% of the net proceeds of the 2022 Placing
(approximately HK$116.9 million) will be used for the strategic
acquisition/development of new projects/products in the field of
medical aesthetic including but not limited to acquisition of medical
aesthetic organisations or investing in medical aesthetic projects and
development of new medical aesthetic products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E&7m & 24

All the conditions precedent set out in the Placing Agreement (together  Fid & 17 3% (& R H fh AN 7] B B &5 (R B 7 2021 €612
with its supplemental agreement entered into between the Company  FB30R ] M%) ATl 2 S sk (G B &=
and the Placing Agent on 30 December 2021) have been fulfilled and the % » MEREREE 202241 3B =K - BRI -
completion under the Placing Agreement took place on 3 January 2022. 2R ARIHEIA2021F12A87H ~ 2021512 A30
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7 B K&202251A3BHAQE

December 2021, 30 December 2021 and 3 January 2022.

During the Reporting Period, approximately HK$133.1 million of the net RIR4EHA - 2022 FFRE FIHAE X B FE P 4
proceeds from the 2022 Placing had been used in accordance with the 133 1BEB TEIREETERATE - BEENT :
intended use and the details are as follows:

Net Expected
proceeds Unutilised  timeline for

utilised net proceeds full utilization

Approximate Net proceeds during the as of of the
% of total from the Reporting 31 December remaining
net proceeds 2022 Placing Period 2022 net proceeds

#2202 THEA

K 2022F  RREHER 128318 ANz

BEEN REEE BDANFAE EHABAN  FEZEN

BaEsL  FREREREH NEEE FENEERE  AHREX
(%) HK$'(million)  HK$'(million) ~ HK$'(million)
(BB)BT (R8)Bnr (AB)ARL

Development of polycaprolactone B E5 B C MER L
microsphere facial filler and its EEPERE R EME
materials for injection, including BEBTRREE
but not limited to development of FEREM - ERER
experimental workshop, research THEREE
and development equipments and 12 months
factories construction investment 40 78.0 53.6 244 128 A

Strategic acquisition/development of — REEMEINE R ER
new projects/products in the field EAEHMFER ER -
of medical aesthetic including but BEETRAKERE
not limited to acquisition of medical ~ EAKBHBEZEER
aesthetic organisations or investing EERARNER

in medical aesthetic projects and EREm

development of new medical 24 months

aesthetic products 60 116.9 79.5 37.4 24{8 A
Total st 100 194.9 133.1 61.8
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z##) (“Mr. Huang"”), aged 57, founder of
the Group, has been the Chairman and executive Director of the Group
since April 2011. He served as the Co-chief Executive Officer of the
Company from November 2020 to March 2023, with Mr. Jin Min jointly
in charge of overall strategic planning and operation management. Mr.
Huang has served as the director of Risun, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and is the director of XKR Prosperous Holding PTE.
Ltd., Starwell Group Holding Limited, Bright Ritzy Limited, Hong Kong
Prosperous Group Holding Limited, Glorious Empire Limited and Sheenos
Limited. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang was the director and
chairman of Vast Surplus Corporation Limited (“Vast Surplus”) since
November 2004 up until now, mainly responsible for strategic planning
and operation of Vast Surplus. After Vast Surplus transferred its exclusive
distribution rights to service Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina to Hong
Kong Prosperous Group Holding Limited in March 2015, it has no
other business operations. Since then, Mr. Huang has been devoting
a majority of his time to the Group’s business. In addition, Mr. Huang
was also a founder, chief executive officer and director of Chengdu
Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February
2004 to April 2011. The principal business of Ruixin was consultation in
pharmaceutical products, providing marketing and promotion services
as well as assisting in obtaining regulatory approvals and registrations
for pharmaceutical products. However, the pharmaceutical products
serviced by Ruixin were mainly traditional Chinese medicine extracts,
which are different from those of the pharmaceutical products serviced
by the Group. Ruixin was not engaged in any business which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business. Furthermore, Ruixin was jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui (an independent third party who is not
considered a connected person or associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was
never a member of the Group which was readily disposable for corporate
reorganisation solely based on Mr. Huang’s decision. As the management
of Ruixin began to focus on the business development of the Group since
Mr. Huang incorporated Sichuan Pharmaceuticals in 2011, Ruixin did not
have any business or operations, which subsequently led to the passing of
the shareholders’ resolutions on 22 September 2015 to voluntarily dissolve
Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (E7T
T ZE L iRERFT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as a pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety
information.
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Directors and Senior Management EE N SR EEE

Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (b REBRREB LI ERERBRAR)
("Beijing Guangtong”), a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao, respectively.
Both Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr.
Huang confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business
license of Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation
of Beijing Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s
business. To be best of Mr. Huang's knowledge, Beijing Guantong had
ceased attending annul inspection (%4%) as it had no business operation,
resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on 26
November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act on
his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (_E/83238K2) in December 2008 and obtained a certificate
of completion from the MBA programme of Renmin University of China
(B AR KE) in August 2002. He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in
botanical resources (B 418 ¥)& &) from Jilin Agriculture University (&
MEZEKE) in July 1988. Mr. Huang has been studying in the Université
Paris — Dauphine under the Executive Doctorate in Business Administration
(EDBA) program since December 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management EE N SR EEE

Mr. Lei Shifeng (F1tt$2) (“Mr. Lei”), aged 56, was appointed as an
executive Director in March 2023. Mr. Lei joined the Group in April 2022
as the vice president of the Group, mainly responsible for administration,
human resources management, public affairs and information
management, and is also the director of Deyang Demei Medical Beauty
Hospital (125 1= £ 2 & = A 2 ) and Sinco (Hainan) Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (BRI (8 )R EZEE AR A 7])). Mr. Lei served as
the president of the Sichuan Guojing Xinlian Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd (P9)I| & B4 S Bt fE S E I 5 BR 2 7)) and the director of
Sichuan SRF Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd (F9)I|%& Bl 4% I L (g
EEIEARAR]) from December 2020 to March 2022. From July 2016
to November 2020, he was the general manager of Chengdu Sinco
Pharmaceutical Technology Co. Ltd and Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd. Mr. Lei was also the director of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Chengdu
Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceuticals Technology Co., Ltd. and Sichuan
Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd. for the same period. From June
2007 to June 2016, Mr. Lei worked as the deputy general manager for
Sichuan Derentang Traditional Chinese Medicine Technology Co., Ltd. (74
JIE R ERBE R B B R A 7)), mainly responsible for procurement,
manufacturing and quality. From May 2001 to May 2007, he worked as
the deputy general manager of Chengdu Zhongxin Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd (K EPFRET B FTR A 7)), mainly responsible for the overall business
operation and management. From July 1988 to April 2001, he was a
manager at Chengdu Traditional Chinese Medicine Company (i & #2414
7~ a]), mainly responsible for the procurement and business operation and
management of its branches. Mr. Lei obtained his bachelor’s degree from
Jilin Agricultural University (F 23 KE3) in July 1988 and the Certified
Pharmacist qualification in January 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management EE N SR EEE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2IZ4£) (“Mr. Lau”), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 8 November 2018.
Mr. Lau is currently the finance and investor relations director, company
secretary of Dalipal Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1921). He is also an
independent non-executive director of Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 528), United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2337)
and Kangli International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6890). Mr. Lau
was an independent non-executive director of China Wood Optimization
(Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 1885) from December 2013 to February
2022, and from May 2012 to October 2020, he served as an independent
non-executive director of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited, which
was delisted on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 5 July 2021.
Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in finance and
accounting in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. Wang Qing (CEB5) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent opinion to
the Board. Mr. Wang has been worked at Dalian University of Technology
(AEIE T AE) from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang served as an
associate professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology
and was later promoted to professor in November 2010, responsible
for research and development and teaching. Mr. Wang is currently the
director of the Department of Pharmacy in the School of Pharmaceutical
Sciences at Dalian University of Technology. From July 1986 to September
1997, Mr. Wang worked as a pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning Provincial
Medical Company Limited (E% & i GREEAF]), where he was
responsible for drugs inspection and evaluation and participated in
research and technical renovation.

Mr. Wang obtained his Ph.D. in therapy system from Kyushu Institute of
Technology (LM & T KE) in Japan in March 2003 and a master'’s
degree in therapy system from Kyushu Institute of Technology in March
2000. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in medicinal plants from
Jilin Agricultural University (5 #7822 K E2) in July 1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (2/33) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 85, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent opinion to
the Board. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2017 to present, he serves
as a senior technical consultant in Shanxi Kangbao Biological Product
Co., Ltd (LFEFRE £ W& mAR A AR 2 A]). From July 2017 to September
2020, Mr. Liu Wenfang served as a senior technical consultant at China
Biologic Products Inc. (RHAEYRBAER AR, a company listed on
NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From February 2011 to July 2017, he served
as an independent director of China Biologic Products Inc. From 2007 to
2011, Mr. Liu worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan Yuanda Shuyang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (F0)IER KR EFF £ E R H B R A E]) where he
was responsible for research and promoting new theories and applications
in the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as the chief engineer
and director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. GEREA ¥ TIZREH
fR A \]) where he was responsible for supervising manufacturing process
and quality management. From May 1998 to May 1999, Mr. Liu served
as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng Biological Products Co., Ltd.
(BBRIEAYETARE T A T) where he was responsible for research
and developing new products. From 1978 to 1988, Mr. Liu worked in
the Institute of Blood Transfusion, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences
(Fh B B2 2R 2B & I A 9T FT) and was engaged in the segregation and
purification of blood and protein and research, development and quality
analysis of blood products.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in biochemistry from the Shenyang
Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 B 7} E2p5 88
[ & Fi AE RERFF T PT) (formerly known as the Institute of Forestry and Soil
Sciences) in August 1963.

Mr. Bai Zhizhong (A&H) (“Mr. Bai”), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 September 2020,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent opinion to
the Board. Mr. Bai has over 30 years of experience in the finance industry.
Mr. Bai served as the chairman of Bank of China Investment Management
Company Limited from January 2015 to June 2017. He worked with the
Bank of China from July 1995 to January 2015, where he had previously
served as the president of the Guangdong province branch, the Sichuan
province branch, the Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region branch and the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region branch of Bank of China, and as
the head of comprehensive planning division of Bank of China, Shanxi
Province branch.

Mr. Bai obtained a master degree in business administration from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC in 2007, and he was qualified
as a senior economist of Bank of China Assessment Committee of
Qualifications in Economic Professional Positions (H B £ 17 4% 775 52 % = 1T
B ERTEEZE®)in December 1994.
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Senior Management

Mr. Jin Min (£8) (“Mr. Jin"), aged 45, jointed our Group in February
2014 as the vice president of the marketing department of Sichuan
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.and was appointed as a chief executive
officer of the Company in March 2023, in charge of the Group’s overall
business development, operation and management. Mr. Jin is also the
director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and Sinco (Hainan)
Investment Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Jin has over 19 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Before joining the Group, Mr. Jin worked
for Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (EJNE B H HR A A)
from August 2001 to January 2014, and last served as the director of
the marketing department, responsible for product promotion and
management. Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor’s degree in management in
June 2001 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in June 2000, both
from Sun Yat-sen University, the PRC.

Mr. Li Yifan (Z=—11) (“Mr. Li"”), aged 43, joined the Group in February
2015 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and financing management of
the Group. Mr. Li is also the director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. Before joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for
China Polymetallic Mining Limited, a company listed on the HKSE (stock
code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and last served as the
deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial accounting and
management. From February 2005 to February 2011, Mr. Li successively
served as an auditor of the Shenzhen Branch and a senior auditor of
the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. Mr. Li obtained a
Master of Science’s degree in Finance from the University of Stirling in
January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University of Finance
and Economics (FARGEF4EAE2) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree in
management. Mr. Li has been a Chinese certified public accountant since
January 2012.
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Mr. Zhang Tao (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 39, joined the Group in
November 2013 and was appointed as the President of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd in November 2022, mainly responsible for its
overall operation and management. Mr. Zhang was successively the
director of president office and deputy general manager and general
manager of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhang is also
the director of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Technology Co., Ltd.,
Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng
Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Sinco Biological
Medical Technology Co., Ltd., Haikou Sinco Biological Medical Technology
Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengmeisheng Biotechnology Co., Ltd, Deyang
Demei Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company and Macao Sinco
Limited. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked for Chengdu
Huide Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (K& ZEE &R FRAF) from July
2010 to July 2012 as the project manager of the R&D department and
product registration manager successively. Mr. Zhang obtained a Master’s
degree of Science in Clinical Pharmacology from University of Glasgow
in December 2013 and graduated from Chengdu University of TCM (A%,
#FRBEZE K 22 in July 2007 with a bachelor’s degree in pharmaceutical
preparation. Mr. Zhang has been a licensed pharmacist since December
2010.

Mr. Wu Qingjiang (2EI) ("Mr. Wu"), aged 59, joined the Group
in September 2021 and was appointed as the vice president of the
Company, mainly responsible for the Group’s medical aesthetic business
sector and research and development centre. He is also the general
manager of Chengdu Hengmeisheng Biotechnology Co., Ltd. Mr. Wu, a
senior engineer, has over 40 years of experience in managing production
and quality control of pharmaceutical products and is familiar with
the regulations about drug administration and new drug research and
development, and has won the first prize of science and technology of the
Chinese Association of Chinese Medicine. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wau served as the executive vice president of Chengdu First Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. from March 2019 to August 2021. He served as the Co-
chief Executive Officer of the Company from May 2017 to February
2019, mainly responsible for the Group’s overall business development,
operational and management. Mr. Wu served as an executive director
in Chengdu Haizhong Investment Co., Ltd* (K& RIEEGRAF])
from 2014 to February 2017, held the position of chairman and general
manager in Sichuan Weiao Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (7)1 4 B &I Z25 R
‘A 7)) and Sichuan Weiao Sanjiang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (P9)!|# &
=TRIEEAFR N A]) from 1997 to 2015, worked as an executive deputy
general manager in Sichuan Jinhui Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (79)|] 4§ 25
ZEEMRAF]) from 1995 to 1996, and successively served as a technician,
section manager, and deputy factory manager in Sichuan Jisheng
Pharmaceutical Factory (F)!|4& /&£ 224 from 1983 to 1995. Mr.
Wu graduated from the Department of Pharmacy of Chengdu University
of Traditional Chinese Medicine in July 1983 and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 19 to 21.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights
on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 81 of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Board resolved to declare a final dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2022 of HK$ 0.98 cents (2021: final dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2021 of HK$ nil cents) per ordinary share,
in an aggregate amount of HK$20,000,000 (2021: HK$nil), has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend
has been calculated by reference to the 2,032,890,585 issued shares
outstanding as at the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") will be held on
Monday, 29 May 2023. A notice convening the AGM will be published
and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due course.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
23 May 2023 to Monday, 29 May 2023, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Monday, 29 May 2023. To be eligible
for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s relevant Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,183
Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
22 May 2023.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS THE
ENTITLEMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The register of members will be closed from Friday, 2 June 2023 to
Tuesday, 6 June 2023, both days inclusive, in order to qualify for
entitlement to the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
1 June 2023. Subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be paid
on or around Thursday, 15 June 2023.

Financial Highlights

A highlights of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This
highlights does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s products purchased from the
largest supplier, accounted for 99.47% (2021: 96.8%) of total products
purchased, and products purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for 100% (2021: 100%) of our total products purchased.
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For the Reporting Period, the Group’s sales to the largest customer
accounted for 31.3% (2021: 28.0%) of our total revenue, and sales to
the five largest customers accounted for 51.35% (2021: 38.9%) of our
total revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2022
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out on page 83 in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman
Islands Companies Law and the Articles of Association, amounted to
approximately RMB235.1 million (as at 31 December 2021: RMB77.4
million).

Bank and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders, the Company had
adopted the Share Option Scheme which became effective on 10 March
2016 (the “Listing Date").

38

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

Eligible participants

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, at its discretion
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest, and to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to
the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no further option
will be granted. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme as at
31 December 2022 is approximately 3 years and 2 months.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, representing 7.87% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total shares in issue.
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Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant
of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may in its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Share must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the option is granted and shall expire on the
earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of such
grant and (i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  The closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted;

(i)  The average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of grant of that option; and

(iii)  The nominal value of the Shares.
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The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that
were still outstanding as at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Grantee's name

ARALR

Number of Options

BREHE
On
1 January
2022
202 Cancelled

Granted Exercised

Lapsed
1818 B i it b3

IR ARt BIR h M 702022612 A31 B AN ARTT
fEE MR T -

(0])]

31 December

#2025
128318

2022 Exercise
Price® Date of grant

@Y RHAMH

Exercise period?

friEse

Employees in aggregate 1,150,000 0 0 0 1,150,000 0 HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017~
EBR# 0.568%7 2016F9F218 20 September 2022
0175982182
2022694208
Notes: Wit
(1) The exercise price represents not less than the highest of (i) the closing price (1) TTEEMERUT=FFHHERE : ()71201659 A

)

40

of HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotations sheets on 21
September 2016, being the date of such grant; (ii) the average closing price
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotations sheets for
five business days immediately preceding the date of such grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

40% of the options granted shall be vested and can be exercised upon one
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of two
years. The remaining 30% of the options granted shall be vested and can
be exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman)
Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect from 29 March 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lei
Shifeng shall hold office only until the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, have offered himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lau
Ying Kit and Mr. Liu Wenfang will retire and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 28 to 34 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of Appointments
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the date
of service agreement, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the letter of appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either part to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or
had any interest in any business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting
Period.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had an aggregate of 231 full-
time employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group'’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors
Up to the date of this report, there were no changes to information which
are required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
Reporting Period.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including any interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into
the register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in the Shares or underlying Shares of the

EERIRITHRABRRS - HERGR
EEPNERERXR

R2022%F12A331H  EFERAREEETHRAER
RAE S EEMAEEEE (EE BFES MBEEDISE
XVER) I - AR RESF - A )REE S
MHRE GBI SEXVERET k8D EAME AN G R E B
TR R AR (BRERBES RAERIEBE
X BEWEEREREAEENTMERRAR)
S(NRIEE FH R E & HI B 35215 BrR R A A RITF
EMEDMARNERE AR - SRR TR BT 8%
TR EMBEITAESTETESFRZHNEESTRIARN
BARNAREBB AR ABAT

(i) MARERDNAERER M HER

Company
Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
Name of Director and underlying shareholding
chief executive Nature of Interest Shares® interest®
MR A
EESRIZABAESHE EEtE HERGEAO BAE e
Mr. Huang® Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%
LD REEEENER
Mr. Jin Min Beneficial owner 13,680,000(L) 0.67%
SEEE EmEAA
Notes: Wit -

(1) The Letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang was the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited was the trustee and held the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn held the entire beneficial
interest. Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in the 1,050,000,000
Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 2,032,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2022.
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that were required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following person/entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Interestsin the Company

Nature of Interest

Risun@ Beneficial owner
Fullwealth Holdings Limited®
REE LB ER
Trustee
XA

Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited®

Interest in controlled corporation

M E X EE SN - 2022912 A3180 » ARAE
ERFBITHRABMENARA RS ERABEHEE(E
ERBHLHAEEXVE) MR, - BERGKESF
HA AR AEE RIEES B EY] 5352850
BRARBATEFEENELMRMEMAERSKAR -
PARIEIZETRABITAE AR A RE BB AT
SRR ©

ggﬂﬁimﬂﬁfﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂifﬁqﬂ AR R
MR2022F 128318 » REEBMEAA - RIBAQ AL
BEAERBEKNEIB6KATFEENELMAAT
8 UTAL /" EER(EEXAQAREBITHRAER
SN AR SARRARR () P B IRIEE FH AR E 60 5
XVEBEE2 K353 B A 16 S8 M1 A8 X A4 B8 O A 2 oAk

A

(i) RARTHER

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding
Number of Shares® interest®
BRHEEO BRESAES O
1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%
1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%
1,050,000,000(L) 51.65%

Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Fullwealth Holdings Limited, Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited and Mr. Huang are deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 2,032,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2022.

(1) FEILEZBALREDABENGEE

(2) EEEAEEFHMERTA - HFWickhams
Cay Trust Company Limited /5 3% = 5T £ 2 5t A
3t #% A Fullwealth Holdings Limtied 2 Bf 125 » M
Fullwealth Holdings Limited3 4 Risun 2 30 & 512
#= ° Fullwealth Holdings Limited + Wickhams Cay
Trust Company Limited 2 & 2 £ 9 W18 BB
RisunE # FTH5A 1,050,000,00088 i 17 B4 2%

(3) ZEDHTIBRIENR2022412 831 HEHR
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee provided by Mr. Huang
as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements is a
connected transaction exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transaction.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law, where the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Non-Competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, Mr. Huang and Risun, the controlling shareholders
of the Company, entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of
the Company (for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group),
pursuant to which they have undertaken, subject to restrictions and
certain exceptions as mentioned in the Prospectus, that they would not,
and would procure that none of their associates (other than any member
of our Group) will, directly or indirectly, engage in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with our Group's
business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC or any other places in
which our Group carries on business.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
shareholders confirming their compliance with the deed of non-
competition during the Reporting Period.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this Report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.

Charitable Donations

During the Reporting Period, the Group donated RMB10,000 to the Lei
Wan Community Residents Committee in Fang Gao Ping Town of Tuan
Feng County for rural assistance (2021: Nil).

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibilities of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advance by the Company to an entity.

Continuing Disclosure Under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibilities of disclosure under rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
with the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 52 to 73 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.
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Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the Group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditor

CL Partners CPA Limited (“CL Partners”) has been appointed by the Board
as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 13 December 2022
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young (“EY")
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 July 2020,
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe") terminated its office as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 8 July 2020.The Board resolved to, having
regard to the recommendation from the Audit Committee, approve the
appointment of EY as the auditor of the Company on 20 July 2020 to fill
the casual vacancy following the termination of Crowe.

Save for the above, there has been no other change of auditors in the
past three years. A resolution for reappointment of CL Partners as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

SUBSEQUENT SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 26 September
2022, 30 September 2022, 24 October 2022, 8 December 2022, 13
December 2022, and 4 January 2023, the Company, on 15 September
2022, received the Letter from Ernst & Young (“EY"), being the then
auditors of the Company, informing that there might be possible
internal control irregularities (“Incident”), which involved transactions
that took place in January 2022 with a sum equivalent to US$13 million
(approximately HK$100 million).
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On 17 September 2022, the Board resolved to establish the Independent
Committee to review and investigate the Incident, which comprised of
four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit, Mr.
Wang Qing, Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Bai Zhizhong.

Having considered the current information and evidence available to
the Company was insufficient and therefore a proper investigation of
the Incident with the assistance of an external forensic accountant was
necessary, on 21 December 2022, the Independent Committee appointed
Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited (“Forensic Accountant”) as an
independent forensic accountant to conduct an independent forensic
investigation into the Incident (“Forensic Investigation”) and produce a
report on the findings of the Forensic Investigation to be presented to the
Independent Committee.

On 15 March 2023, the Independent Committee received a draft
forensic investigation report (“Forensic Investigation Report”) from the
Forensic Accountant, details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 March 2023.

As at the date hereof, the Independent Committee is in the process of
engaging an internal control consultant to review the internal control
system of the Group taking the recommendations from the Forensic
Accountant. The Company will make further announcement to update
investors and shareholders once the internal control review results are
available.

Other than the above, the Board is not aware of any material event
requiring disclosure, that has taken place subsequent to 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors EE &R

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 14.36B OF THE
LISTING RULES

Reference is made to the section headed “the Acquisition of Demei
Company” in this Annual Report and the announcement of the Company
dated 22 March 2022 (“2022 Announcement”) in respect of, among
others, the entering into of the equity transfer agreements (“Equity
Transfer Agreements”) between the Purchaser and the Vendor in respect
of the sale and purchase of the entire equity interest in Demei Company

As disclosed in the 2022 Announcement, pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreements, the third installment shall be RMB18,900,000 and shall be
paid by Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited Company in a lump sum within
30 days upon the official issuance of each audit data of Demei Company
after the end of all the performance commitment years of 2022 (from
the Completion Date to 31 December 2022), 2023 (for the period from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023) and 2024 (for the period from
1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024). If the target net profit of any
year has not been achieved, the third installment shall be reduced in
accordance with Equity Transfer Agreements.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2022,
pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreements, the specific target results
shall be archived for each year are as follows (the net profit for each year
below is referred to as the “annual target net profit” below):

(1) the audited net profit after the deduction of non-recurring profit and

loss shall not be less than RMB5.0 million (RMB5,000,000) for 2022.

(2) the audited net profit after the deduction of non-recurring profit and
loss shall not be less than RMB8.5 million (RMB8,500,000) for 2023.

(3) the audited net profit after the deduction of non-recurring profit
and loss shall not be less than RMB10.6 million (RMB10,600,000) for
2024.
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Report of the Directors EE &R

Based on the audit data, if the actual annual net profit of Demei Company
for 2022, 2023 and 2024 > 80% of the annual target net profit and the
sum of the actual net profit for the three years > the sum of the target net
profit for the three years, Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited Company shall
pay the third installment in full.

Based on the information available, the actual net profit after the
deduction of non-recurring profit and loss of Demei Company for 2022
is RMB4.3 million. The actual annual net profit of Demei Company for
2022 > 80% of the annual target net profit for 2022. Therefore, the third
installment will not be adjusted for the time being.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 25 April 2023
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation from Code
Provision C.2.1 as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” of this report. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are outlined later in this
report. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Purpose, Values and Strategy

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to attain its vision
and strategy. It is the Board's role to foster a corporate culture with the
following core principles and to ensure that the Company’s goal, values
and business strategies are aligned to it. The Group strives to maintain
high standards of business ethics and corporate governance across all
our activities and operations. The Directors, management and staff are all
required to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly. Trainings are conducted
from time to time to reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics
and integrity.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors the Group's business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
daily management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the internal control and corporate governance committee (the
"ICCG Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of

legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Board Composition and Mechanisms Ensuring
Independent Views and Input Available to the Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin
Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect from 29 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has been in compliance with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will
be immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s
performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) to ensure that the Company will,
when determining the composition of the Board, consider Board
diversity in terms of, among other things, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Board
Diversity Policy sets out the approach towards achieving diversity on the
Board. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, all Board appointments will
be based on merits, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. The
establishment of Board Diversity Policy ensures that independent views
and input are made available to the Board. To ensure that independent
non-executive Directors can provide independent views and input to
the Board, the independence of independent non-executive Directors is
assessed by the Nomination Committee at the time of their appointment
and on an annual basis.

EESARRBRESSRESELENER
R AvHEH

RAFHRALE EFGEUTHARTEFTROEE
TIFITERMEN

HITES -
B L
E RS A (R20234F3 529 HEZ (F)

BUFPITES
Bl
RS
B ek
E St

ZEEENERENAFRIEERFREREE | —

ff o

RBEIA - ARF—BET ETRRE3 1000 RE
3N0MEMRTE - NRBRZEEL =RBLIENTT
E% BEHPEL - ZBUFRNTEFARFEEN
BXERIETARENHEREE -

RATTREST EHARBIEIN0AKHRTE - NEH
RENBIIFNTESFAEEFTENEABEL =D

Z—°

ARBEEEEENE S TICERAARBNRER
BR%Z - Flt - ARAREHRMEZTEZ TR E
ZELTCHEK]) MRARAEETEETSHEKE
ENZTEEBESEZ L - HhBREFEK - XL
REBEER  BELR  RERAE - EFE2ZTL
BERBIBREETEL TN L - REEFEZTT
ERE  EFEMAZTHURARS RRA G2
ANEREZEEBRT AN EFTESESZ TN a
- BFEZLCBRNELERESSAIEEEL
BHLER - RERELFATESAIRESTSREM
BYBHMER REZBERZMELIFNTES
B BFEF B IFNTERR BT -

2022 54 BHABBRRARAR 53



I~

Corporate Governance Report ¥ EAHR

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the mechanisms ensuring independent views and
input available to the Board and is of the view that the mechanisms
worked well to ensure that the Board had access to independent views
and input.

The Board currently has no female Director. The Board would continue to
take initiatives to identify suitable candidates so as to appoint at least one
female Director on the Board no later than 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the ICCG Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Gender Diversity

As of 31 December 2022, approximately 38.5% and 61.5% of the
Group's employees were male and female, respectively. The Group
recognises the value of gender diversity to promote a diverse and inclusive
working environment and welcomes male and female representation at all
levels. However, the Group currently does not consider it appropriate to
set any specific gender target for its workforce. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group also takes into account other relevant factors in its
hiring decisions and considers that the gender ratio of the workforce of
the Group is appropriate for its current business model and operational
needs.
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Dividend Policy
The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 21
December 2018. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to consider the payment of dividends, to allow
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group's future growth.

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

- the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

—  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

—  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

- other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to certain restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association.
The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development
Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 is as follows:

RIBEEMBEHMER - EENEE2022512A31
BIEEEFEMRZABIBENT

Nature of Continuous
Professional

Development Programmes

Name of Director

Executive Director HITEF

Mr. Huang Xiangbin EEWEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHRTEE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit RRGEEE

Mr. Wang Qing SERE L

Mr. Liu Wenfang B35k

Mr. Bai Zhizhong Shotasbvtes

FEEXRBRITHNME

A, C&D A-CKkD

A, B,C&D A-B-CKkD
A, B,C&D A-B-CKkD
cC&D CKkD

A, C&D A-CkD

Notes:

A.  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings
B.  Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums
C.  Attending training relevant to the Company’s business conducted by lawyers

D.  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s duties and
responsibilities, listing rules and other relevant ordinances

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Huang was the Chairman of
the Board and the co-chief executive officer of the Company (“Co-CEQ")
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, with Mr. Huang's
extensive experience in the pharmaceutical industry, the Board considered
that vesting the roles of Chairman and Co-CEO in the same person is
beneficial to the business prospects and management of the Group. The
check and balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprise experienced
and high calibre individuals. Accordingly, the Board believes that this
arrangement will not impact on the balance of power and authorisations
between the Board and the management of the Company. On 29 March
2023, Mr. Huang resigned as the Co-CEO. Upon Mr. Huang's resignation
as a Co-CEO, the other Co-CEOQ, Mr. Jin Min (“Mr. Jin"), will become
the chief executive officer of the Company. Subsequent to Mr. Huang's
resignation as a Co-CEO of the Company, the Company has confirm
there is no deviation with the Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, in
which stated the roles of Chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company will continuously review and comply with Code Provision C.2.1
of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM, and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the Reporting Period, 11 Board meetings and 1 general meeting
were held and the attendance records of each Director are set out below:

Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin |EW A

Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect

from 29 March 2023) BEEE)
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BT A
Mr. Wang Qing FRES A
Mr. Liu Wenfang B EE
Mr. Bai Zhizhong %A

Bt g A4 (202343 A29H

Exgg3

ARRBEMBITEFTEEH  8FELIR - KK
BEERITEH - MAEFSVTERBAKNER
RITAZEL 4R ZXELRBEF  FHAKSLES
& BRBNTEHANITEHERANER

REHMEFEREFLZEBEERME - ARF—RE
BHAEBA - FRLEMNEFTE XN GRS
RMEI3AFTEETRESTZEGNE  UERES
BERRBHHEENERXHRASHIELTD LR - i
EXFESZEENBRELFEER MRS SES
METRROEERNERBTAERERTFES
BENTR - FRCFABFEARWERT © BIAHK
REREERERN - UHB2E LK -

B NEERReRRN RS ERY
MEZZEEMERNEELERNRAE  BRES
RENEMNRIFR SEFEERNESFZRES
FNEHRLHRERLN BN ERRTERRESE
RENFEAERES  UWHESREER 2288
ANEHRTEHESSER -

RBERN - HBETNMAEFEEZRIAREX
& ZEFNHFELEHIIMT

Attended/

Eligible to attend

the general meeting(s)
BHE AHE
REREIRE

Attended/
Eligible to attend

the Board meeting(s)
BHE THE
ESER3H
11/11 17l

0/0 0/0

11/ 171
11/11 171
11/11 171
11/11 11
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in the Company'’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during the
Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision rights over all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function and ICCG Committee

The ICCG Committee currently comprises five members, including
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lei Shifeng and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu
Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai Zhizhong.

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the ICCG Committee which includes, without limitation:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

(f)  to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an on-going basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the ICCG Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, 1 ICCG Committee meeting was held and

the attendance records are set out below:

RB|EMA - KRBT IVRRABES R EEXERZES
i HECEEHEIMT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors HERE BERE
Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect Bt 254 (74202343 A29H 0/0

from 29 March 2023) EZL(E)
Mr. Lau Ying Kit DR 7
Mr. Wang Qing FEEAE 7
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN EE 1”n
Mr. Bai Zhizhong EREA 11
Audit Committee EREER

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members, namely Mr.
Lau Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai
Zhizhong, all of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the
following:

(@) to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Auditor;

(b) toreview the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

(c) toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, 4 Audit Committee meetings were held RIFEHR » KBTI ERZEGSE  BKXEE

and the attendance records of the Audit Committee meeting are set out  @@:EAHFCEFIIAOT -

below:

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors HERE BRERE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit IR E 4/4
Mr. Wang Qing FRE L 4/4
Mr. Liu Wenfang Byt 4/4
Mr. Bai Zhizhong ER kA 4/4

Remuneration Committee FMEESE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four members, HMEEEEAIBENEKE @ BIF—BNTESEH
including one executive Director namely Mr. Lei Shifeng and three  $#%4  UR=FBUIFRTEFIBAE(TE)
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Qing (chairman), ~ ZIXF fERBEREE

Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Bai Zhizhong.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not HMMEZEEGHNEERE BFETRRIATSHE :
limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy 1. FARREFRSHEIREN R INHR L
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior BREEERBBEANFTMAREFRAESZIRE
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent HHEEER
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration with 2. EREZEZTE QR BRERE B RIEER
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board; B

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive 3. EEESIAITESRSRAERBOHMNGFSE - £
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in BEWEN - RN REEEE - BIBEE
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any ATBEI S AR B TS SR EUB = R FE T RO BS(E
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
cancellation of appointment;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of 4. SBIEHITESNFHMAESSIRHERER
non-executive Directors;
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5.  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
cancellation of appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for their misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8. to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

9. to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were
held and the attendance records are set out below:

5. EEAERLBRARXMNNHSE - RARRREEA
FEHEME - ARANEEEM I EARBGT

6. WERIERMITEERSREEE A EBERN
RIS BUB R RN OMRE - AR E R
BRGR—B BRERSQERLET B &
BETRARNTFMAEES

7. B RIEEFERITR/KRE MEREXRRMMY
REBRERS - WERBEES ORI &
REEANGERLET -3 RETEARERE
I3

8. WRIBERFHMABMEACEER LHRA)
SEBEEEARGOHH -

9. FHEE/LHEETRAE1TEETHRBEN
FHEIMEER -

FZE N EmMBEEECSHN BB RAR
AIABL -

RIEHA - ABT2AFNEE SR - HELiR
HyT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors HERE EERE
Mr. Lei Shifeng (appointed with effect B854 (74202343 A29H 0/0

from 29 March 2023) EE(E)

Mr. Wang Qing AR A 2/2
Mr. Bai Zhizhong B 212
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 S 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director, namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Lau Ying Kit.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors,
in particular the Chairman and the chief executive officer; and

5. toreview the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, 2 Nomination Committee meetings were
held and the attendance records are set out below:

Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin | E
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG &
Mr. Liu Wenfang By e

REZES

REZESEMA=BKE B R2RTEEEN
WHRE(LZRE)  ARMBBILIENTERI T EE
KBRS -

REZEENIZBREBEUTEE

1. BEELRI-REFENERE - ABRMAK
(BIEEE - A REER) - WA A ARMD
ERBABMONTIMEERNESTSREHERR
"

2. PEARREERMALTHIESENRE I
BREHEEFHARETREXMEFTSREM
HEER

3. AMEEIMIFITESAELIL
4. HRECREFZEEERESF(LEEIERT
BRI ENESSRMERER &
5. BNEEEZITEHEE -
RAEZEGENZHEENGEREANELESE - B
g B - BB MR E TS M A PrRE R IO BF
BREH BABHEBRERRZESIRE - 'S
ZEENEHREEECHNE BRI EARFHE

ik o

RREEAN - CRMNRELZESSH  HERLE
HT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

HERE ERRE

2/2
2/2
2/2
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Nomination Policy
1 Objective
1.1 The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

1.2 The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Director at general meetings or
appoint him/her to fill causal vacancies.

1.3 The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) helps the Nomination Committee and the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Group’s business.

2 Selection Criteria
2.1 The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

(1)  Reputation for integrity;

(2) Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

(3) Diversity of the Board in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and are not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

3 Nomination Procedures
3.1 Appointment of Directors
(1) The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, and assesses the independence of the proposed
independent non-executive Director(s) as appropriate.

(2) The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.
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4

66

3.2

The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by
the Nomination Committee after having due regard to
the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s)
as Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by
the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board will be subject to re-election by Shareholders
at the next following general meeting, in accordance with
the Article of Association.

The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s),
who stand(s) for election at general meeting, as
Director(s).

Re-appointment of Directors

M

(5)

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring
Director, having due regard to the Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy, and assesses the independence
of each retiring independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers each retiring Director recommended
by the Nomination Committee after having due regard to
the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

The Shareholders approve the re-election of Directors at
the annual general meeting.

3.3 The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for all matters
relating to the selection and appointment of Directors.

Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy,

as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination

Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 33 to 34
of this annual report, for the Reporting Period are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

EERSREEEHH
EEHMFBENAFREAMBHERMES - 2R
EEE(RENEERNAFREIBEIME)NEREN
PWEYFBHE S 2 T -

Number of individual

FMEE (ARW)

1,000,000 - 2,000,000
Below 1,000,000

1,000,000% 2,000,000 f& 1
1,000,000L4

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 78 to 80 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such systems on an annual basis. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 21 December 2022, the Independent Committee appointed Grant
Thornton Advisory Services Limited, an independent forensic accountant,
to conduct an independent forensic investigation into the incident as
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 26 September
2022, 30 September 2022, and 24 October 2022 and produce a report
on the findings of the Independent Investigation to be presented to the
Independent Committee.
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The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control systems to be effective and
adequate.

Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework is structured in the following
"Three Lines of Defense” model as a guide:

AEBENARBRZABPIEER AR RAE R mE
TEZAE - ANERHPINEIZRAERRIARF
EEATE AR B BRI S - I B E SR EEZA R B
BOXEBRMBRR]

ErgoaAKERREIEMNAGES RENK
A REZEAREENANLZFHEREXARRE

FEfEE R AEBERRENEREH

AEBEMNERERERATESIRO =—BRRIER
tERES!

Board of Directors

=g

iy

i)

ICCG Committee
NEBEGI R EEEREZES

Audit Committee
BENELZEY

{3 i)

{3

2nd Line of Defence:
Risk Management and Internal Control Team
F_BMR - RRERERAEDEEE K

3rd Line of Defence:
Internal Audit Department
FoEMLR - NEEIZERM

iy

1st Line of Defence:
All Business Departments
FE—BR - BB

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the ICCG and the Audit
Committee. Such review encompasses all major control aspects, including
finance, operation and compliance. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022, with all the above major control aspects covered.
Regarding the Incident which involved transactions that took place in
January 2022 with a sum equivalent to US$13 million (approximately
HK$100 million), the external forensic accountant had identified certain
deficiencies in the Group’s internal control systems. In this respect, the
Independent Committee is in the process of engaging an internal control
consultant to review the internal control system of the Group taking
the recommendations from the Forensic Accountant and assisting the
Group in improving the systems by devising and implementing remedial
measures to remedy the deficiencies identified and to effectively prevent
the occurrence of the events similar to the Incident. The Company will
make a further announcement to update investors and shareholders once
the internal control review results are available.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control systems to be effective and
adequate.

The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
considered the important investigation results concerning the matters of
risk management and internal control, reported to and raised suggestions
to the Board.

1st Line of Defense

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defense

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team (the “Team”) organises
business departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that
may have a potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the
implementation of proper measures and internal control regulations to
address major risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes
measures to reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response
to and follow up of the investigation results of internal control from
the internal audit department (the “Internal Audit Department”), and
confirms to the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk management
and internal control systems.
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3rd Line of Defense
The Internal Audit Department executes the actual review procedure, to
collect the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, and report the review results
to the ICCG Committee.

In addition, the Internal Audit Department raises suggestions to the Board
and the management, to address major institutional inadequacies or any
control loopholes spotted.

Procedures Applied to Identifying, Assessing and

Managing Major Risks

—  Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group

- Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

—  Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and the possibility of their
occurrence, and assessing the risks identified

—  Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures, to avert or reduce risks

—  Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant
risks, ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly
reporting to the management and the Board on the results of risk
monitoring

Whistleblowing Policy

The Board adopted a whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing Policy”)
in April 2015 and further updated in March 2021 and March 2023.
The purpose of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a culture of
compliance, ethical behaviour and good corporate governance across
the Group; and (ii) promote the importance of ethical behaviour and
encourages the reporting of misconduct, unlawful and unethical behavior.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the Audit
Committee or the human resource director of the Group. No incident of
fraud or misconduct that have material effect on the Group’s financial
statements or overall operations for the year ended 31 December 2022
has been discovered.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee to
ensure its effectiveness.
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Anti-corruption Policy

The Board adopted an anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-corruption Policy”)
in April 2015 and further updated in March 2021 and March 2023. The
Group is committed to achieving the highest standards of integrity and
ethical behaviour in conducting business. The Anti-corruption Policy
forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate governance framework.
The Anti-corruption Policy sets out the specific behavioural guidelines
that the Group’s personnel and business partners must follow to combat
corruption. It demonstrates the Group’s commitment to the practice of
ethical business conduct and the compliance of the anti-corruption laws
and regulations that apply to its local and foreign operations. In line with
this commitment and to ensure transparency in the Group’s practices,
the Anti-corruption Policy has been prepared as a guide to all Group
employees and third parties dealing with the Group.

The Anti-corruption Policy is reviewed and updated periodically to align
with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry best
practice.

Function of Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Audit Department's
main responsibilities are to review the financial conditions and internal
control of the Company and all its subsidiaries, communicate with
department managers and senior management on the identified problems,
non-compliance issues and inadequacies, and jointly prepare rectification
and improvement solutions. The Internal Audit Department also follows
up such rectification results, and reports to the ICCG Committee and the
Audit Committee.

Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

e Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and

e  The Investor Relations Department and the Board Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and archiving and keeping such information
disclosure documents and announcements.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB2.3 million. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect
of non-audit services.

Company Secretary
During the Reporting Period, Ms. Peng Yunlu (“Ms. Peng”), one of our
joint company secretaries of the Company, is responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board policies and procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also
engaged Mr. Li Kin Wai (“Mr. Li") of Tricor Services Limited as another
joint company secretary to assist Ms. Peng to discharge her duties as
company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact person
at the Company is Ms. Peng, one of the joint company secretaries of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Peng and Mr. Li have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions. During the Reporting Period, the
Board has considered and reviewed the communication mechanism with
investors (Shareholders included) and considers it to be effective.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
guestions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding together, as at date of deposit of the
requisition, shares representing not less than one-tenth of the voting
rights, on a one vote per share basis, of the Company which carry the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or company secretaries of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to
convene such meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North Section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC (Email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and became effective from the Listing
Date. During the Reporting Period, the second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company was adopted by
a special resolution passed on 13 May 2022.
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To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 193,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HgES SR

REETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNMEERRETEE

Revenue recognition

TR W

The Group recognises revenue when the amount can be
reliably estimated, when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and the control of the goods
is transferred to the buyer. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group recognised revenue of RMB2,272 million.
Some terms of sales arrangements with customers including the
timing of transfer of control of goods, delivery specifications,
generate complexity and judgement in determining sales
revenues and revenue cut-off. The risk is, therefore, that
revenue is not recognised in the correct period or that revenue
and the associated profit is misstated.

The Group’s disclosures about revenue is included in notes 2.4,
3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:

e understanding the revenue recognition policy and
performing tests of controls on revenue recognition;

° reviewing sales contracts and supplementary agreements
to check the relevant key terms of revenue recognition;

° performing analytical procedures by comparing the unit
selling price, the sales volumes and gross margin to that
in prior years by products and by month;

° obtaining confirmation from key customers and reviewing
the reconciliation of any material difference by checking
to related documents;

e performing the cut-off test for revenue recognised
before and subsequent to the end of reporting period
so as to check whether revenue is accounted for in the
appropriate period; and

° assessing the disclosures regarding the revenue
recognition.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEETEE

Impairment of goodwill

EE0p ]

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to the significance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and significant judgement involved in
the management’s assessment process.

As disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the net carrying amounts of goodwill at 31
December 2022 was RMB66,536,000. In estimating the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill have been allocated, the management has made a
number of key assumptions in the value in use calculation. The
key assumptions include growth rates, discount rates applied
and the forecast performance based on management’s view of
future business prospects.
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EENETNMEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of goodwill
included:

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

° Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry;

° Evaluating the historical accuracy and the growth rate of
the financial budget used in the discounted cash flows by
comparing the historical budget to actual results;

e  Testing a selection of data inputs underpinning the cash
flow forecasts against appropriate supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets, to assess the accuracy and
reliability;

e Assessing the sensitivity analysis prepared by management
on the significant assumptions to evaluate the extent of
impact on the discounted cash flows; and

e Assessing whether the disclosures of impairment
assessment in the consolidated financial statements are
sufficient and appropriate.
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Other matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 30
March 2022.

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

REMRBFA RS M BRRARAENERE

(#)

BEEERAFECESTERESRE  WR
BEESNETRE  BEERFEREMHRIE
AEMONBERATHEREE - Uk B5E
EORHE A R I BR SRR ST © {imgﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ
TE%KT%%I% EERNZBENSRE IR
ﬁ%%&%ﬁAWFﬁ%WWH%ﬁ © Bl
m@&%TE ANEEIEENER - EFNER
Mﬁi&%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%%%ﬁmmﬁﬁ

o A - AREBMHIBRAIEES BEEET
ﬁ# EIR A o

AHEEFA B HRRNEREIHAIRN RERAR
(BREEE)  UAREAMBEHRRELSC AN KRB
IR P E R

B EREANERAXREIDNMBENEST
RIMEENEEE  ABGEMBHRRERE
R-BFSRAERE EBERRUTEEMNEST
- BERBENETERAERNAE -

EEAEEER(EPEE)E TENTEEE -
RENERETHR  ZFERBEESNENHE
AR YRR A (E e B KR

EEMMARERRER  HPESECETEREL
MRRRBEER  YEREEBUEKAERARE
FEESBEIENMABRLEMERARAAER
BB RITEN SR E s i (W@ )

2022 54 BHABBRRARAR 79



Independent Auditor’s Report Y& AZE AR &
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #{Z=2022F 12 A31HILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

CL Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Wai Chi

Practising Certificate Member: P07830
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

meBEnkEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #,ZE2022412 A31HILFE

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Other expenses

Changes in fair value on financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to owners of the Company

Earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company:

Basic
— For profit for the year (RMB)

Diluted
— For profit for the year (RMB)

W
HERA

E7

Hip A Rz

HE MEIHRX
TS

B S RUGRRERE
B

SEATRIROR - H YRR
REMEENTREERE

ER A
HAibFZ
BAFERT AR

EHMABEQAFER
LUR IR

BRBLADEF
PSR

FRENREERE
M

RABHEE ARG

RATRERA
EEERETR

BN
—FREN(ARE)

Y
—FREN(ARE)

25

10

10

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
2,271,505 2,024,055
(1,965,637) (1,659,105)
305,868 364,950
25,240 10,951
(117,016) (105,375)
(81,423) (66,001)
(6,205) (1,020)
279 164
(6,485) (7,118)
(2,633) -
(18,333) (29,164)
99,292 167,387
(29,830) (32,304)
69,462 135,083
69,462 135,083
0.034 0.078
0.034 0.078
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 11 258,109 207,867
Investment property KEYEE 12 6,319 6,499
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13 57,730 48,394
Other intangible asset HfbmaE 14 15,001 -
Payments in advance BN FIE 231 169
Goodwill e 24 66,536 -
Deferred tax assets BIEIEEE 15 3,001 860
Total non-current assets EREBEELE 406,927 263,789
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 16 88,148 61,270
Trade and bills receivables B S E M EWEE 17 351,268 213,601
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTERIE  Hofh e RIE K
other assets HiEE 18 140,994 313,039
Pledged deposits BIREFHR 19 107,852 55,015
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 19 329,144 326,052
Total current assets REBEERE 1,017,406 968,977
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade and bills payables B S ENIE R EMNEE 20 407,988 422,933
Contract liabilities EHIEE 21 75,429 27,749
Other payables and accruals L FE T RRIE I FE T RIE 22 117,927 53,424
Bank and other borrowings HRITRE M AR 23 180,806 208,320
Tax payable e TR 5,437 12,826
Lease liabilities HEAE 13 2,998 384
Total current liabilities REEEEAE 790,585 725,636
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 226,821 243,341
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERABERS 633,748 507,130
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %24 B &R T3
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 58 =Ri
Bank and other borrowings $R1T R EL MR fE X 23 922 132,244
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIEEE 15 2,250 -
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEFABENERAE
through profit or loss 25 19,078 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 13 7,686 -
Total non-current liabilities FFRBBEREE 29,936 132,244
Net assets EERE 603,812 374,886
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AEGER
the Company
Issued capital BT 26 164 151
Reserves & 28 603,648 374,735
Total equity R 603,812 374,886
Huang Xiangbin Liu Wenfang
EHHEW B|33%
Director Director
EFE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e TE

Year ended 31 December 2022 & Z2022412A31 B ILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYEE N

(Accumulated
Share Share losses) Non-
Issued  premium Contributed  Statutory option Other retained controlling Total
capital  account  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserves profits ~ Sub-total interests equity

E8f v L] (RitER) #2R
Bx  EER  REBR OIRGS B AtEE  REEA it B Rufl
RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBODO  RMBOOD  RVBOO0  RVBOOO VB0  RMBOOD  RWBIOOO

ARETT T AREfT . ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETR
(note 26) (note 28(b)) (note 28(d)
At 1 January 2021 R01E1A1R 136 289113 4250 20,554 2,906 4014 (155,636) 165,337 (908) 164,429
Profit and total comprehensive EmprREERA
income for the year % - - - - - - 135083 135083 - 135083
Isue of new shares EShtil 006 - - - - - - 017
Share issue expenses BOE5 - (369) - - - - - (369) - (369
Acquisiton of non-controlling interests WS RiER - (908) - - - - - 908) 908 -
Fquity-settled share option amangement ~ FRiEEEMERER
(note 27) (he27) 1 1177 - - (2.210) - - 5568 - 5568
Forfeiture of share options (note 27) RERE ) - - - - (77 - 47 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETRE - - - 5,863 - - (5,863) - - -
At 31 December 2021 R021E12831A 151 365,774 4,250¢ 26417 219¢ 4,014 (25939 374886 - 3488
At 1 January 2022 RORE1A1A 151 365,774 4250+ 26,417* 9% 4,014% (25,939)¢ 374,886 - 374886
Profit and total comprehensive el e
income for the year g - - - - - - 69,462 69,462 - 69,462
Issue of new shares KiEk 13 165518 - - - - - 165531 - 165531
Share issue expenses PGEL - (6067) = - - - - (606]) - (6067)
Forfeture of share options (note 27) RRERER) - - - - (219 - 219 - - -
Transfer to retained profis ERERERH - - - - - (a0 4,014 - - -
Transfer to statutory resenve ERTTTRE - - - 3310 - - (3310) - = =
At 31 December 2022 R02E12831R 164 525205 4250+ 29,17 - - M6 603812 - 603812

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of = ZERERLESAVBMARANGEREBARE
RMB603,648,000 (2021: RMB374,735,000) in the consolidated statement of 603,648,0007T (20214 : AR#5374,735,0007T) °
financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\ IE/%/)H;E%%

Year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE2022412 A31HILFE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&IEFIEEESHKE

Profit before tax BR AT A 99,292 167,387
Adjustments for: AT HIEHE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #% - B KREITE 7 5,608 4,957
Depreciation of investment property REMEE 7 180 180
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PREESERE 7 3,569 1,540
Amortisation of other intangible asset H v 8 i 7 1,999 22
Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net 5fi A5 08 5 (et ) /B 1BF 5 7 (15,980) 3,549
Interest income from financial assets BRAFEFABENSREE
at fair value through profit or loss AW A 5 (1.121) (795)
Finance costs BATS AR 6 18,333 29,164
Bank interest income RITHBHA 5 (1.301) (518)
Other income attributable to the receipt of LS B B S 4B HE My E i A
donation of a vehicle - (30)
Provision for impairment loss on trade B 5 UGB RERE
receivables B 7 6,205 1,020
Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets 5t ATB{ 7B « EfbERFIE
included in prepayments, other receivables MEMEENSREERE
and other assets JictedEl 7 (279) (164)
Changes in fair value on financial liabilities at BATHES A BN 2REE
fair value through profit or loss AT EZE 25 2,633 -
119,138 206,312
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B FEWGIE R ERERR
bills receivables (), wd (133,872) 364,066
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TETHUA - HEREIE R E
other receivables and other assets BEmL(Em) 136,846 (34,259)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE0Em, R (26,878) 181,291
(Increase)/decrease in payments in advance FERFIEOGM), R (62) 627
Decrease in trade and bills payables B HIENRIE R ERNERR D (21,196) (277,387)
Increase in amounts due from related parties JE U B sE Ty FRIE S N - (1)
Decrease in other payables and accruals HAb R 5B MR SRR (8,216) (93,697)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities Ai{]ﬁ &0 Crid) 47,680 (57)
Cash generated from operations EEFRSRE 113,440 346,885
Interest received BUF R 1,301 518
Hong Kong tax paid BN EBHIE (5,924) (20,542)
PRC tax paid 2R ERIA (33,736) (21,149
Net cash flows from operating activities RETEFEBHEENEFE 75,081 305,712
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &R & T2 R
Year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022412A31H ILEE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®BEZHFEBEESHE

Purchase of items of property, plant and BEWHE  BEMEEES

equipment (52,691) (23,522)
Purchase of wealth management products BELEARATERTA

classified as financial assets at fair value BRfEmEED

through profit or loss BEIE MR (80,000) (366,136)
Redemption of wealth management products BRIDERLZATERA

classified as financial assets at fair value BanerEEn

through profit or loss B EM 80,000 366,136
Interest income from financial assets at fair ZATER ABEE

value through profit or loss SREENFEHA 5 1,121 795
Proceeds for disposal of property, plant and HEDE BEK

equipment BEFTISRUA 300 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R B /8 2 7 24 (68,000) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities  REZHFFIARERETFE (119,270) (22,727)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®BEEZHFfEESHE

Principal portion of lease payments HENRHAE D (2,612) (719)
Interest portion of lease payments AEMRHFIEHD 13 (433) (55)
Interest paid BEARFLE (17,900) (22,417)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings R1T R EME TS RE 180,000 210,000
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITREMER (338,836) (77,937)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and H e < 30 K e R T RE

accruals, net i,/ Ol ) FE 72,719 (115,962)
Issue of new shares BITHAR 159,464 69,806
Exercise of share options Gid e = 5,568
Increase in pledged deposits [REEEEVES=6: Pl (52,837) (55,015)
Increase/(decrease) in prepayments, other B RE - EfEUGIER

receivables and other assets, net Eﬁﬂ%ﬁ@%ﬂﬂ/ W) FE 35,478 (110,377)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEZTEFRE(FTA)RE

financing activities REFE 35,043 (97,108)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #EIREHRER
Year ended 31 December 2022 &Z=2022412 831 B ILFE

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

2022 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B s ARETR AREFIT
RAeRBEZEWRDL)

BhnFEE (9,146) 185,877
HMNEFE RGBT BT 12,238 (3,590)
Efmiﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁw%%

326,052 143,765
EXRBER

HeZEY 329,144 326,052
BERBEZEY

RS
REFBARRRAIEE R

ReEEY 19 329,144 326,052
BERERERFAYRSR

REEEY 329,144 326,052
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Notes to Financial Statements

AR R 2R At

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H
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Corporate and Group Information

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
March 2015. The controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company are Mr. Huang Xiangbin and Risun. The
registered office address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at Room 2403,
Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

In the previous year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in marketing,
promotion and channel management services for improved human
plasma-based pharmaceuticals, antibiotics and other pharmaceuticals
focused on therapeutic areas and complementary to human plasma-
based products and other fast-growing categories in Mainland
China. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
research and development of the polycaprolactone microsphere
facial filler for injection is progressing smoothly and had started trial
production for the research purpose in the second half of the current
year, it was separately managed as the research and manufacturing
of aesthetic medicine segment. Besides, the Group acquired Deyang
Demei Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company ({Ep5{E 8 &3
ANEFT AR AT (“"Demei Company”), a medical beauty services
provider (as further detailed in note 24), which was managed as the
medical beauty services segment.

In the opinion of the Directors, Risun, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements B} #& ¥R FRHIEE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

AT REEER ()
B AT ER
KARIMBRABIFBENAT

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and
place of business

TR,/ i B R
EEEE SR

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTZER/
AR A

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
KRRES
BRI
Direct Indirect
Hi i
% %

Principal activities

Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
HERERRERLT BVI 50,0003 7T REARB
20135F 1174268
ERGARES
Bright Ritzy Limited 5 August 2016 Us$1 100 - Investment holding
RERRAT BVI (v REER
201658 A5H
RBRRRES
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals 17 February 2011 US$10,000,000 100 - Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China 10,000,000 7T HEEm
KAENEREERARD 2011523178
E/ A
Hong Kong Prosperous Group 20 December 2013 HK$100 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Holding Limited Hong Kong 10077T HEER
BEABREERRERAT 20135124208
Glorious Empire Limited 26 August 2016 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
RS AR AR Hong Kong 15T REER
20168 H26H
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31 December 2022 202212 H31H

AAREEEH(E)
MEAREME)

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

90

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and
place of business

LM B S i B
EEE SR

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERALER/
HRLEN

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
KRS
BEEAL
Direct Indirect
HE iEE:
% %

Principal activities

TREH

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals 1 April 2011 RMB100,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co,, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China A &%100,000,0007 HEEm
M BRAEREREERF 201154818
R,/ HEN
Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 100 Research and development on
Co., Ltd.h PRC/Mainland China  AR#1,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
M ERE LR EARAFD 20135114258 L
HRE /R
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB22,000,000 - 100 Providing warehouse facilities for
Technology Co., Ltd.® PRC/Mainland China  AR®22,000,0007C pharmaceutical products
RAFERABERMBEREMLRRY 2014524268 REEREERE
HE/ B
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang 4 March 2015 RMB100,000 - 100 Consultation on medical and
Pharmaceutical Technology PRC/Mainland China AR#100,0007T biological technology
Co., Ltd. ("Chengdu Hengsheng”) 201543 A4H BERENEMESR
KBERENBERMEREERR A/ HEN

(TPEpERE )0
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Notes to Financial Statements B} #& ¥R FRHIEE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

AAREEEH(E)
MEAREME)

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and
place of business

MR E R
AARERME

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTEER/
R

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AAREL
BREAL
Direct Indirect
EE iEE
% %

Principal activities

TERRE

Xizang Linzhi Ziguang pharmaceutical 17 November 2014 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of Pharmaceutical products
Co., ltd. ("Linzhi Ziguang") PRC/Mainland China  A&#10,000,0007T HEEm
FRERAEEEREELF 2014F 118178
(5K B/ RE R,
Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd.? 25 August 2016 RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
HERE( D) BHBRRFN PRC/Mainland China  AE%5,000,0007C HEER
201684250
hE/E R
Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading 15 November 2016 RMB30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China A #§30,000,0007T REER
EEERERBHBRAR0 20165114158
HE/ B,
Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals 15 May 2007 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ld. PRC/Mainland China A F#510,000,0007T HEEM
BRmAEFERAFN 2007458158
HE/ B
Deyang Demei Medical Beauty 10 May 2022 RMB3,000,000 100 - Medical beauty services
Hospital Limited Company! PRC/Mainland China  AF#3,000,0007 BERS
EEEEERERERARARY 2022554108
hE/HER
XKR Prosperous Holding PTE. Ltd.i 6 August 2020 SGD10,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Mg EREEIERER AR Singapore 10,0008 I T HEEm
202068 A6H
IR
Macao Sinco Limited.® 1 February 2021 MOP25,000 - 100 International trade
BPIERIE - ABRARM Macau JRF9H25,0007T BRES
2021218
EP
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Notes to Financial Statements B} f& ¥R FRHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1. ARIREEER(E)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) WEBATER(E)
Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
ML R R R BRTEER/ ANTIELG
EEE il AR A BREAL TEEHK
Direct Indirect
HE iE
% %
Beijing Sinco Biological Medical 9 August 2021 RMB2,000,000 - 100 Market promotion
Technology Co., Ltd.(i PRC/Mainland China  A&#2,000,0007T i3
IRERAENBERRERRTY  202158A9H
RE /R
Haikou Sinco Biological Medical 29 August 2021 RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Market promotion
Technology Co., Ltd.i PRC/Mainland China ~ AR #10,000,0007T MSHEE
BOERALNBEREERARY 202148290
HE/ HRE R
Sheenos Limited 30 November 2021 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
BVI 50,000% 7 REER
2021411 A308
EBRRARES
Sinco (Hainan) Investment 19 July 2022 RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Co., Ltd.( PRC/Mainland China  AK#50,000,0007T RAER
ENA(EM) RARRBRAFD 20225774198
HE /RN
Chengdu Hengmeisheng 26 January 2022 RMB50,000,000 - 100 Research and manufacturing of
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.f PRC/Mainland China A& #50,000,0007T aesthetic medicine
REMBEREREARARD 202261268 MERZBEEXEY
E/HER
(i)  These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises () HEWBABBRBEPEARKMBE(HE]EE
under the law of the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC"). At AN EERE -
(i)  These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability companies under iy ZEWBRBABRBEFEZEZMAERAEER
PRC law. Al e
(iiiy  The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under (i) M A FIRBIH I HAMB AR T M AINEE
the law of the Republic of Singapore. Bz
(iv)  The subsidiary is registered as a one-person limited liability company vy ZMBARRBRPYEEIMA—ABRAR -

under the law of Macau.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.1 REHEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"), which comprise standards and interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"),
and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee Interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“"RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
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2.1

94

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which includes
an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired processes
are considered substantive if they are critical to the ability to
continue producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform the related
processes or they significantly contribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot
be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in June
2018 (the "Conceptual Framework") except for transactions and
events within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, in which the Group
applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.
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2.1
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Basis of Preparation (Continued)

For reporting entities applying IFRS Standards:

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as
if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.1 RBIEE(E)

For reporting entities applying IFRS Standards: (Continued)
When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the "measurement period" (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that
do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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2.1

98

Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
IFRSs and the Committee’s agenda decision(s) in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 3
Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The Group has applied the amendments to business combinations
for which the acquisition date was on or after 1 January 2022. The
amendments update a reference in IFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework"”) instead
of Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010), add a requirement that,
for transactions and events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies,
an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual
Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination and add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognize contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The application of the amendments in the current year has had no
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts’
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
IFRS 17)
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback3
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)"
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

1 00 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 BEMEEARENNEPRE I ®REE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material. If an entity
chooses to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements (the
“Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an entity
applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and examples
are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

A(%&)

BIFR SRt 22 RS 5R N B PR B A R 5 2E A
BBNEHE2RUEETA) ST BRI E
RERTEAFIRCIEER - WEXSFTE
REF DR EBZSFTBER ] —ANMARR °
HEFRREN BBV FRRABEMEN—
HEE - S BREMAT NS ERYEYEER
FBHRERNEBERERBEZEVBHRRMIEL
EYRE - RIS BEREMBENR -

HERTATNB BT BRREM AIERBHRS -
Hip et EmBEX - Bt S5
TERX - Al WIABEREAR S - HibEH
FAREENEABERERNAGBEX - HER
BEREIFERGHBRER  MERENTE
BEFAEIBERER -

BRI B HREENERAEE2RIELEREH
B ((EBREDIRCEHERT - AHARBIOAS
[MAFEAMRIZ IERANSTBRIKE - WA
BRSTBRRNERHENBBRMESERE
R BBAECENESIRED -

FERZIET AR T U AEENOT BN KE
RELEAFE  EAfFErASEIESHH
RERE - BANFZE(WNE) BRAEEREZRN
FAMBmRTE -

2022 5% mymmmpparss 101



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 EEMEEARENNEPREIEHREE

102

BI(%&)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting B s E R FE QY (ST R) 2Lt ey
Estimates EH

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require such items to
be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly
and must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops
an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by the
accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use
of judgements or assumptions based on the latest available, reliable
information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in IAS 8 is
retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 TEEHBEHE
Fair value measurement NFESE

The Group measures its certain wealth management products and
contingent consideration payable at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful lives
Buildings 34-40 years
Machinery 10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

3-5 years or over the remaining
term, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of investment properties to their residual value over their
estimated useful life of 46 years.

Any gain or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately form goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected form use or disposal. Gains
and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises and warehouse 2 to 5 years
Leasehold land 50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

The Group elected to present right-of-use assets separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

110

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
on which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group elected to present the lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in other income in profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the leases are accounted for as
finance leases.

HE(E)

FEBERFTN ()

() HHHEREEESEHER
AEEHHE LB ERRE(ARSR
BB ESRF1I2EARKA TR TR EE
BEEgOEE)EREHEERRRE
HINEBEEEHSRAH R AN
BREBENBAEREEE - BHEE
MMEEEEEHENHEN RN ESRRE
BOEFER R °

AREBER LN

MAEERHEA - BIREERAE (ML
HEEHR)BESEEEN B AKEHERRE
gHE -

AEEREEREEME R HHBAE DR
B ROmNEE - HEAKEEE - HEHRE
HERFEER D - NEERAHBINEER
ERBHNREDEESED - HRNELENE
BB ARERARIZEREARIL T ABRAR
HAWA - RERRZEHELHEREL NG
BEERAFAHEEENREE - TR EHRR
SFE 2 W AR A ELERER o RAE SR ATHREX
M HIRE R S E M o

BRI EEMA R SR AR D ER K e
BTAEANEE  (EAREREARK -

022 5% memmmpmarss 111



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through Profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other income and gains” line item.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 -

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component,

the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank and other borrowings and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, bank and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for trading or (iii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of repurchasing
it in the near term; or

e oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire combined contract to
be designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms an existing
liability are subsequently modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in “finance costs” in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods.

Service income
Revenue from service is recognised at the point in time when services
are transferred to the customer.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#&RFHIzE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income from distribution services is recognised when services
are completed at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Subject to
shareholders’ agreement, the Company may also allot and issue
certain new shares in the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives for specific employees to remain employed in the Group
and to motivate them to strive for the further development and
expansion of the Group. Employees (including the Directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& 3Rk Mz
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in Singapore are members of
the central provident fund board in Singapore operated by the
Government of Singapore. Payments to the central provident fund
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. The Company’s
contributions have been capped to up to HK$1,500 per month
since 1 June 2014 for each of its employees in Hong Kong and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. At a meeting of the Board
held on 29 March 2023, the Directors resolved not to pay final
dividends to Shareholders for the Reporting Period.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared. In the event that the interim dividends
are paid out of the share premium account, shareholders’ approval
at an extraordinary general meeting is needed. When these interim
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profit or loss is translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

Revenue recognition

To determine the timing of revenue recognition, the Group applies
judgements in determining the point in time at which customers
obtain control of the promised pharmaceuticals and the Group
satisfies the performance obligations. Depending on the nature
and terms of the agreements, the Group may recognise revenue
when the pharmaceuticals inspection report is obtained or when
pharmaceuticals are received by customers or the services are
transferred.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”) and Hong Kong corporate
income tax (“HK CIT”)

The Group's operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to PRC CIT and the operating subsidiary in Hong Kong is subject
to Hong Kong CIT. Objective estimates based on currently enacted
tax laws, regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision for PRC CIT and HK CIT to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact the income
tax expense and tax provision in the period in which the differences
realise. The carrying amount of tax payable as at 31 December 2022
was RMB5,437,000 (2021: RMB12,826,000).
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature. Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories as at
31 December 2022 was RMB88,148,000 (2021: RMB61,270,000)
and the impairment provision for inventories for the year ended 31
December 2022 was nil (2021: nil).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be
utilised based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 was
RMB3,001,000 (2021: RMB860,000). Further details are given in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets with definite lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, which is
the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit (or a
group of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows or upward revision
of discount rate, a material impairment loss or further impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill is
RMB66,536,000 (2021: Nil) (net of accumulated impairment loss
of Nil (2021: Nil)). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurement of contingent consideration
payable

Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
estimations relating to these factors could affect the reported fair
value of the contingent consideration payable. Further details are
given in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue and Operating Segment Information
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their services and products and has three (2021: one)
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the sale of imported pharmaceutical products segment;

(b) the research and manufacturing of aesthetic medicine
segment; and

(¢) the medical beauty services segment.

In previous years, the board of directors (the “Directors”)
considered that there were no reportable segments other than
the sale of imported pharmaceutical products segment. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, as the Group’s research and
development of the polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler for
injection is progressing smoothly and had started trial production for
the research purpose in the second half of the current year, it was
separately managed as the research and manufacturing of aesthetic
medicine segment. Besides, the Group acquired Demei Company,
a medical beauty services provider (as further detailed in note 24),
which was managed as the medical beauty services segment. The
Directors monitor the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Due to the changes in the
composition of segment during the year ended 31 December 2022,
the operating segment information for the year ended 31 December
2021 was also restated.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit before tax except that other income and gains, other expenses,
finance costs not related to lease and charges attributable to issue
of letters of credit and corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits, bank
balances and cash and corporate and other unallocated assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.
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Revenue and Operating Segment Information

(Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings, deferred tax
liabilities, tax payable and corporate and other unallocated liabilities

as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

The following tables present revenue and profit (loss) information for
the Group’s operating segments for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively.

Year ended 31 December 2022

Segments

Segment revenue
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other
unallocated expenses

Other income and gains

Other expenses

Finance costs (other than interest
on lease liabilities and finance
charges attributable to issue of
letters of credit)

Profit before tax
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4.

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Segment revenue
Sales to external customers

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other

unallocated expenses
Other income and gains
Other expenses

Finance costs (other than interest BAFSEAN(FRE

on lease liabilities and finance
charges attributable to issue
of letters of credit)

Profit before tax
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31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information

(Continued)

The following table presents information of assets and liabilities of
the Group's operating segments as at 31 December 2022 and 31

December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022

Wk EETHER(E)

TRE5H2022F12 4318 &2021F12831H

AEEREDHNEERBEEN -

7A2022%12H31H

Sale Research and
of imported  manufacturing Medical
pharmaceutical of aesthetic beauty
Segments products medicine services Total
BxEy

ENERHE MEREE BER% @zt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AR%T T AR®T T AR®T T

Segment assets AHEE 833,202 51,381 99,030 983,613

Recondiliation: Eolic s

Corporate and other rEREMADEERE

unallocated assets 723

Deferred tax assets ERRIBEE 3,001

Bank balances and cash FIEBREES 329,144

Pledged deposits BHEAEX 107,852

Total assets BEE 1,424,333

Segment liabilities Pan= 596,059 5,753 29,232 631,044

Reconciliation: Bk

Corporate and other PEREMANREE

unallocated liabilities 62

Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 181,728

Tax payable fERTIR 5437

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE 2,250

Total liabilities Bak 820,521
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31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4.

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Segment assets
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets
Deferred tax assets
Bank balances and cash
Pledged deposits

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Tax payable

Total liabilities

Sale
of imported
pharmaceutical
products
O BEmHE
RMB’000
ARETFT
ATHEE 850,213
i
CEREMRDEEE
ELHIEEE
RITEBRRE
BHEMER
BEE
SMEE 504,427
HE
CENEMADEEE
SRIT R H AR
FETIIE
BafE

WK AEE DA

72021612H31H

Research and
manufacturing
of aesthetic
medicine
BxEy
o K sE
RMB’'000
AREFT

PE L (5)

Medical
beauty
services

B MR
RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARETT
850,213

626

860
326,052
55,015

1,232,766

- 504,427

63
340,564
12,826

857,880

2022 3R FRRBEEERARAR
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31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Amounts included in the

Sale

of imported
pharmaceutical
products

ENHEmHE
RMB’000
AR®T R

5AS iR B

4. WmkEEDWER (&)

HZE2022F12A318 LFE

Research and
manufacturing
of aesthetic
medicine
BxaY
MRAREE
RMB’000
ARET T

Medical
beauty
services

B MRAE
RMB’000

AR%TR

Total

At
RMB’000
AR®T T

measure of segment profitor ~ HEPEERSEE

loss or segment assets:
Capital expenditure* BRI 3,336 59,978 22,741 86,055
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7% & # 6,941 1,641 2,774 11,356
Provision for impairment loss B S W IERE

on trade receivables B E 6,205 - - 6,205
Reversal of impairment loss B EIFT ATEFUE - HAbE

on financial assets included WEE R EA B ER € R

in prepayments, other AERERE

receivables and other assets (279) - - (279)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12A318 L FE

Amounts included in the

Sale

of imported
pharmaceutical
products

EOEREE
RMB’000
ARETT

FEAD EHERA B

Research and
manufacturing
of aesthetic
medicine
BxEy
o R i
RMB’000
ARBTT

Medical
beauty
services

B3
RMB'000

ARETTT

Total

it
RMB'000
ARBFTT

measure of segment profitor D EEEMEHE -

loss or segment assets;
Capital expenditure* BARRZ* 24,575 - - 24,575
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #78 K 6,699 - - 6,699
Provision for impairment loss 2 5 EUGIERE

on trade receivables EEEE 1,020 - - 1,020
Reversal of impairment loss BEE AFERNFUE - EtfE

on financial assets included WERIB R E M EEN SR

in prepayments, other EERERE

receivables and other assets (164) - - (164)

* AARXBEEAEEREAE  HMEPAEN

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to right-of-use assets, other
intangible asset and property, plant and equipment
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4. WHRKLEHPBER(E)
(Continued)

An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wz
2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFT
Revenue from contracts with customers: RERFPAHMKE
Sale of imputed pharmaceutical products EOBGEE 2,259,313 2,024,055
Medical beauty services BEXEARTS 12,192 -
2,271,505 2,024,055
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZEFEHNNE
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from contracts () KEEFELISIW a9 BB
with customers
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2022F 128318 1L FE
Sale of
imported Medical
pharmaceutical beauty
Segments products services Total
PN EO#EREE B X RA% et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ET T AR®TT
Types of goods or services Emoi RS ER
Sale of imported pharmaceutical EOBEE
products 2,259,313 - 2,259,313
Medical beauty services BERRS - 12,192 12,192

Total revenue from contracts with KEEEAHH
customers W B EE 2,259,313 12,192 2,271,505
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4. WWHERR&EHIER(E)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEFESHNE(E)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from contracts ()  KEFEFEABIM sy EF A ()
with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31HLFE

Segments

2 &P

Sale of

imported Medical

pharmaceutical beauty
products services Total
HEOERHE B IR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETT ARKETT

Types of goods or services EmE iR EE
Sale of imported pharmaceutical HEOEREE
products 2,024,055 - 2,024,055
Medical beauty services BRERTE - - -
Total revenue from contracts with KEREAHN
customers kit 2,024,055 - 2,024,055
2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREBFIT
Types of pharmaceuticals HEnER
Human albumin solution AMAZEHESR 2,257,253 1,973,223
Antibiotics (Axetine and Medocef) MER(LZAREEEY) 2,060 50,832
Total revenue from contracts with customers RERFALMNKELEEE 2,259,313 2,024,055

Geographical markets

HWETE

All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during
each of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 was
attributable to customers located in Mainland China, the place
of domicile of the Group's principal operating entities. The
Group's non-current assets are all located in Mainland China.
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

()  Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)
Timing of revenue recognition
All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during
each of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 was
recognised when goods and services were transferred at a
point in time.

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Sale of imported pharmaceutical products
(note 21)

4, WHEREEDIER(E)

REATFEHNRE(E)
()  KEFF B Kty Ko BT (E)

BT 25 1B

HZE2022F M2021F12A31BILFEES
F AEBEFARERFAHNKEENE
HE RIS 2R o

TRETFTABRSHONENABEELR
AR SRR

2022 2021
RMB'000

AR¥TT

RMB’000
ARBTR

RS TR A S B
BRI

EOBRIEE (Ha21)

11,698 27,732

Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted
to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below:

ZFEA

Customer A

FTEEFEH
REASETEZPEEINE10% A EAUL
mEHIIT
2022 2021
RMB'000
ARETIT
566,149

RMB’000
AR®BTR

669,433

(i) Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of imported pharmaceutical products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
pharmaceuticals and payment is generally due within 90 to 180
days (2021: 90 to 180 days) from delivery, except for certain
customers who make payments in advance prior to delivery of
the pharmaceuticals.

Medical beauty services

The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

(i) EXIEILE
BRAKEEOEENERBMNT

EOBRHEE
BHE TR YR ER - MR — &
R 1E90KE 180K (20214 : 90K F
180K)NEH - B TRFANI R
RITBSEAI 3R ©

BXRE
BHOREREF R KRB EERARER
A ZREFER
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31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

5. Other Income and Gains

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

Bank interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (note 7)

Government grants*

Net rental income from investment property
(notes 7, 12, 13)

Service income

Exchange gains, net

Others

AW R ez
AMEMRA BRGSO T -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
RITHAEMA 1,301 518
RERAFEFAEEN
SREENNEWANE7) 1,121 795
BT HEEh* 42 1,152
HEMENEEWAFE
(BfzE7 12 13) 624 172
ARAEUWA 6,168 8,284
fE S F 5 15,980 -
Hit 4 30
25,240 10,951

*

government grants.

6. Finance Costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Interest on bank and other borrowings

Interest on lease liabilities (note 13)

Finance charges attributable to issue of
letters of credit

Unwinding of discount on long-term
deposits received

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the

RITREA TR S

MERENE(HZ13)

* UEBEBTEDNRETIRERIAER -

R ERREREMEER

FRERREIR CHEX
ki

B RS A
BEREAMERAN DT -
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
13,380 21,390
433 55
4,520 1,141
- 6,578
18,333 29,164
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31 December 2022 202212 H31H

7. Profit Before Tax 7.

The Group's profit before tax was arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBE A A
AEBNBRATEFE MR, (GLA) THIES -

2022

RMB’000
ARBTR

2021
RMB'000
ARBTT

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 1,962,422 1,659,105
Cost of services provided B IR AR A AR 3,215 -
Depreciation of property, Y -~ B R

plant and equipment e 1" 5,608 4,957
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PREEERE 13 3,569 1,540
Depreciation of investment property WREYEITE 12 180 180
Amortisation of other intangible asset HttEmEE#H 14 1,999 22
Research and development expenses HEERGIATHRAX)

(included in administrative expenses) 11,270 26,160
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss AT IR ARIE

recognised on: EERE (BE)

Trade receivables B 5 FEWGRIA 17 6,205 1,020

Financial assets included in prepayments, T AJEMFUA « B

other receivables and other assets JEMGRIE R Bt &
B RE E 18 (279) (164)

Short-term lease payments MERTE R 13 838 1,000
Auditors’ remuneration it Gkl 2,300 2,850
Employee benefit expense BERARAXZ

(including directors’ remuneration (BIEKTEE8ATEL

as set out in note 8): EEH) -
Wages and salaries TENHS 22,665 13,731
Welfare and other benefits B R E A= 3,165 1,366
Pension scheme contributions BIRSETEMER

— Defined contribution fund —ERHRES 4,154 1,925
Housing fund FEAES

— Defined contribution fund —ERHFES 726 551
Total employee benefit expense EERFHAZ A 30,710 17,573
Exchange (gains)/losses, net S (W) /SRR (15,980) 3,549
Interest income from financial assets at RN ER ABRS

fair value through profit or loss SREENSHA (1,121) (795)
Net rental income from investment property &2 S U A FLE (624) (172)
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8 EERIETHRAEFMUREZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees = 5ES
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed WIEEAHCES ML - TEATENSE
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the 383(1)@) * (b) * QO EMOIEEAF (HEEEHNZ
HKSE, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies BRDIBROIE2IHIRE - FRESLFTEITHA
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BT ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2022 AOPA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARETIT
Fees we 760 732
Other emoluments: Hpe
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUREDER 5,558 2,338
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEEIHR
— Defined contribution fund —ERERES 213 51
6,531 3,121
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FEREMBYIERTESHNESOT

the year were as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Mr. Liu Wenfang BINC5 190 183
Mr. Wang Qing ARTE 190 183
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BIRAEE 190 183
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BREREE 190 183
760 732

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent F B FE N T B IEITE B EH A

non-executive directors during the year. %o
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EERTRTHAEBHFMUREER
SHEE(E)
(b) BITESBRETERITHAR

8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8.
and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive officer

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
211 Bk
RENER e AR #@st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETR ARETR AR®T
2022 2022F
Executive director WTES
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin (note a) —EEWEE(HHa) 3,998 = 114 4,112
Co-chief executive officer: SEITIEE -
~ Mr. Jin Min (note b) — BB (WD) 1,560 - 99 1,659
5,558 - 213 5,771
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Fees contributions Total
e o 28 Bk
REMET Hwe AR e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
2021 20214
Executive directors: WiTES:
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin (note a) —EEW R E (W ita) 2,338 - 51 2,389
— Ms. Zhang Zhijie (note c) — k&G T (Mitc) - - - -
2,338 - 51 2,389

Notes:

(@)  For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Huang Xiangbin is
also the chief executive officer of the Company. On 29 March
2023, Mr. Huang was resigned as the chief executive officer of
the Company.

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Jin Min was the co-
chief executive officer of the Company. On 29 March 2023,
Mr. Jin Min was appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company.

(00 Ms. Zhang Zhijie resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 8 January 2021.

(d)  On 29 March 2023, Mr. Lei Shifeng was appointed as an
executive director of the Company.

Wit

(a)

(d)

2022 3R FRRBEEERARAR

HE2022F12A831BILFE - SREWE
EINVEBARREITTEAAR, - 12023F3 729
H - S4BT ARRITHRES -

HE202F12A31BILEE - ©8%4%
RN B REITIEE 202393 A29
B @HELERSTERRRITREE -

REBELZTEBAEARARARNTES - 5
202161 ASHARARR ©

M2023F3F29R  FEHELEEZTE
AATMITES -
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration 8 EBEERIETHAEFMUREZER

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) BHEE(E)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive officer (b) HITEEREFETHAE(E)
(Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMEBEESREXRERELM BN
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. ZHE -
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for EXITRATEENERBEEEEARF]
their services in connection with the management of the EAREEEHEHRBMEL o FXHTRE
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent non- VT ESHERBESHAELRARFES
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their IREARS ML -

services as directors of the Company.

(c) Five highest paid employees (0 EEEREHEE
The five highest paid employees during the year ended 31 HZE2022F12A31BLEFE  AE&=
December 2022 included one director and one co-chief HEERE —REEN —RBETHER
executive officer (2021: one director), details of whose (20215 : —RER) - AFHMNFBEEN L
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration X oo Htp =% (20214 : MEZ)WIFEFK
during the year of the remaining three (2021: four) highest ARBEBITRABNESHEESENFRN
paid employees who are neither a director nor a chief executive BB T -

officer of the Company are as follows:

2022 PAOYA
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  RALREWEN 1,537 2,129
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIMEER 245 119
1,782 2,248

The number of non-director and non-chief executive officer HNF TNy BRI EES RIETTHAER

highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the SEmEEHAZBWT :

following band is as follows:

2022 2021

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4
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Income Tax Expense

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI. The assessable profits of the Group derived from Hong
Kong are subject to a two-tiered profit tax rate regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits are taxed
at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

Except for Demei Company, the provision for PRC CIT is based on
the respective PRC CIT rates applicable to the subsidiaries located
in Mainland China as determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations of Mainland China for the year. All
subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC were subject to PRC CIT at a rate
of 25% during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

According to the Circular on Issues Concerning Tax Policies for In-
depth Implementation of Western Development Strategies ( ([
PORANE B TE A0 A F 3 B T W BCR RIRE VB A) ), Demei
Company being a subsidiary located in Sichuan Province and
engaged in the encouraged business is entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December
2022 and until 31 December 2030.

Taxation in Singapore is calculated at the tax rate of 17% for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

FriS#ip
BEHSHESREBHERRESHHRARER -
NEBEDBSMNHERS R ABHERTESHE
AIFTISHL « ASKER B BB IR /BIZM
WA FIS T RGH o FERFL A FIHY H 2,000,000
7 70(20214F : 2,000,000 7T ) 1%28.25% (2021
F 1 8.25% ) IBEERBEH - HeRPERT R IR
16.5% (20214 : 16.5% ) HFL R TS -

BREZQEIN  RRESEMSTHEBHIREFA
P B it 8 BAATIS AR Bl SO AR AT 8 9 313 AR
A HR B P 3 B B R B A AR B FE TS R R AT
12 HE2022F F2021F 124318 IEEE » B
P B ET A B A B AR B SRR
R)5% T o

IRIECRAR R A B i 70 5B K 9 35 B R A BA R IR R
REBRBA) - BEQRBMAI)IE M E
NERNEEBBES - BEE20229F12A4
BTHLEFEREE2030F12A31BEHES
15% MR EMEHEERE

HZE2022F12A31HIEFE @ SN FIBEZ
17% T RAE -

FEREE I SERBAHWT -

Current — Hong Kong BIER— &
Charge for the year FARE
Current — Mainland China BIER — R B A3t
Charge for the year FRFZ
Current - Singapore BVER — ¥ 03
Charge for the year FAMAL
Deferred tax credit (note 15) RERIEE R (M3 15)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIER A58

2022 PAA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMETTT
9,032 12,121
19,469 20,397
3,770 -
(2,441) (214)
29,830 32,304

2022 6% BHABERRARAT
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9. Income Tax Expense(Continued) 9. FTSHBAX(E)
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit before REANASEE T AR EAE RS
tax at the applicable tax rates for companies within the Group to the AiEANFEHEY B TR R ERAENTER
income tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: F OSBRI T ¢
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARKETFIT
Profit before tax BrER AR A 99,292 167,387
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates REBEEREENTIE
— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — R EIFB D RIR25 %51 & 4,847 20,585
- PRC subsidiaries at 15% — PRI B R AR 15%:TH 769 -
— the Company and Hong Kong subsidiary e YNGIDN &A= UNG
at 8.25% 1£8.25% 518 165 41
— the Company and Hong Kong subsidiary —ARAREAWME AR
at 16.5% 116.5%:tH 8,703 10,219
— the Singapore subsidiary at 17% — ¥ E A TR 7% E 3,770 -
Differences previously not recognised BERERNER (1,108) (2,137)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose (Note a) NeJ RS (Hrita) 14,574 3,199
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences AER BT R Z5EH
not recognised M E (351) (924)
Effect of super deduction for search and T2 A A DDA THIBR Y
development cost (Note b) 2 (M5Eb) (4,463) -
Income not subject for tax purpose BARBHA (2,291) )
Tax losses not recognised RERTIBEIE 5,215 1,223
29,830 32,304

Notes: Wiat -

(@) Expenses not deductible for tax purpose for the years ended 31 (a) #EZE2022%F12A318K%2021F12A31HILEFE
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 mainly consisted of AR X ZRETHRAS « BATFER
administrative expenses, change in fair value on financial liabilities AEmNe R e ERATEZE IR RIIEE
at fair value through profit or loss, and foreign exchange differences HE R EREANAKRESEREENER - ZE5H
incurred by offshore companies and fees for not obtaining formal S FEER AR NER o
invoices. These expenses are not expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.

(b)  Cai Shui [2018] No. 99 “Notice on Increasing the Pre-tax Deduction (b) BFFE[2018]995% [ B tE = i e M B AR AN
Ratio of Research and Development Expenses” (“the Notice”) was TR L OIE @R I ([32m A |) 7201848 7 8
released in August 2018. According to the Notice, a PRC subsidiary o IRIBEZBA > REMBRAREGELENAE
is entitled to an additional tax deduction on eligible research and FEEARTABEHNHRBES ZBEBIMNITIER
development expenses incurred for the current year. %, o
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10. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners of 10. XA FEE AELEESREF

the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 of RMB69,462,000 (2021: RMB135,083,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,031,575,517
(2021:1,736,830,311) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
adjusted to reflect the impact of a dilution as the exercise prices
of the Company’s outstanding share options were lower than the
average market prices for the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2021. No adjustment has been made to the
basic earnings per share amount presented for the year ended 31
December 2022 in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the
Company’s outstanding share options were higher than average
market prices for the Company’s shares during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

BRARRFEENEHE2022F12A3181LF
EARRNEHESR ARG A R69,462,0007T
(20214 : AR#135,083,0007T) A M ERE 3
1T R ANREF922,031,575,517/% (20214 -
1,736,830,311%):1& -

BREERTRENARAREES ABEF RGN
FTE - WER TR AR D 7] 8 AR I T I A A
NITEEERREZ2021F12A31B IEFEEARD
AR FEHMEBR THEELE - ARAQA
M ARITEREARAEATITEE SR AR FRMD R FEA
B mE - B EREEE 2022412 A31H1E
FEEINNEREABNSEELTAMAE

SAEESRERNEEREERN

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Earnings Z T
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

ZYNIEZ PNyl

69,462 135,083

Number of shares

RAEE

Shares Bin
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic

earnings per share calculation

2022

AR EERERBNNFEAR
EBTERBINET I

Effect of dilution — weighted average BErE - LTERMEFHIH

number of ordinary shares

2,031,575,517 1,736,830,311
= 613,267
2,031,575,517 1,737,443,578
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

1. % BERRE

Leasehold
improvements
and office Motor  Construction in

equipment vehicles progress Total

BEEBR
g7 B% BAZRE hE kEIR a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

11. Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings Machinery

31 December 2022 0F12A318

Cost: B

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021E12A318 k202251518 197313 1,509 11,082 18,549 33495 261,948
Acquistion of subsidiaries (note 24) VENBLR Wi - 3459 - - - 3459
Additions AE - 539 217 7% 51,089 52,691

Disposals & - - (106) (1.958) - (2,064)
At 31 December 2022 R0nE1E318 197313 5557 11,193 17387 84,584 316,03
Accumulated depreciation: 2iE:

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R021E12A318 k20251518 26,417 534 9,535 17,595 - 54,081

Provided for the year (note 7) EnEE) 3700 1,269 53 107 - 5,608
Disposals i - - (100 (1,664) - (1,764)
At 31 December 2022 R00E1EIE 30,17 1403 9967 16,038 - 57,925
Net carrying amount: RERE:

At 31 December 2021 20215124318 170,89 975 1547 954 33,49 207,687
At 31 December 2022 R0ENA3NE 167,19 3754 12 1349 84,584 258,109
31 December 2021 1E12A31A

Cost: HA:

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 H2020%12A318 202151818 175,163 1,509 10,946 18,518 31237 231373
Additions e 22,150 - 136 3 2,258 24,575
At 31 December 2021 R01E12A8318 197313 1,509 11,082 18,549 3349 261,948
Accumulated depreciation: ZithE:

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R00E12831BR201E1A18 21,983 401 9,252 17488 - 49,124
Provided for the year (note 7) ERERET) 4434 133 28 107 - 4957
At 31 December 2021 RONERAIR 26417 5 953 17595 - 54,081

Net carrying amount; RERE:

At 31 December 2020 20205128318 153,180 1,108 1694 1,030 3137 188,249
At 31 December 2021 R0E1E318 170,89 975 1547 %4 33,495 207,861

MR2022F12A318 » AEBEEFEAARE
70,999,0007T (20214 : AR #57,159,0007T)
METEFEEFF—FERT(2021F : MEIR
17)  tEAREEIRITERNER(KIFE23G0) °
R2022F12A31H » ASEEREFEAAR
#9,778,0007T (20214 : AR ¥9,967,0007T)
K& T1EF 2 R LUE A R #60,000,0007T
(20214 : AERE¥60,000,0007T)EERTTRIE ©

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s certain buildings with a net
carrying amount of RMB70,999,000 (2021: RMB57,159,000) were
pledged to one bank (2021: two banks) to secure the Group’s
bank loans (note 23 (a)). As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
certain buildings with a net carrying amount of RMB9,778,000
(2021: RMB9,967,000) were pledged to obtain bank facilities of
RMB60,000,000 (2021: RMB60,000,000).

1 50 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

12. BEWE

12. Investment Property

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETIT
Carrying amount at 1 January M A1TAMIEEE 6,499 6,679
Depreciation provided for the year (note 7) FNEFHEITE (H:27) (180) (180)
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A31BRNEREE 6,319 6,499
Notes: Biat -
(@)  Asat 31 December 2022, the fair value of the investment property was (@) 20225128318  BEMENRAFEGETNAE
estimated to be approximately RMB8,292,000 (2021: RMB8,292,000). AR 88,292,000 (20214 : AFR%8,292,000
The valuation was performed in 2020 by Asia-Pacific Consulting and T0) o MERBL EES ERGAEME AT FE
Appraisal Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer. HABMRARA2020F#1T - FRNEEREL -
There is no significant change during the year and no revaluation REITE o INMHEMAORIZZEBENSN
has been carried out. Selection criteria of the external valuer HBE . CBUMURRGHISEEZE - (HE
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether THAR 15 3 AR 2K AH & WA kA8 [R] b 2 K% i1 FE L
professional standards are maintained. The valuation was estimated YEMTHAS R SAF(ER ) HENEEA
using discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of SRETRAETEET - REVENATEFERE
future rental income or market rents for similar properties in the same BEZETEANTAIERGASIR(E=H) -
location and condition, where appropriate. The fair value measurement
hierarchy of the investment property requires certain significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).
(b)  The Group’s investment property is situated in Mainland China and (b)  AEBEIRE Y FELLF BRI AR 5 A BRFE A0
held under medium lease terms. /A -
(0  As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the investment (©  F2022F12A318BK20215F12A318 - &YW
property was leased to a third party under operating leases. FIREEHEHET—BE=F -
(d)  As at 31 December 2022, the Group's investment property with a net (d)  MA2022F12A31H » Z"EEEREFEAARE

carrying amount of RMB6,319,000 (2021: RMB6,499,000) was pledged
to obtain bank facilities of RMB180,000,000 (2021: RMB150,000,000)
granted to the Group.

6,319,0007T(20214F : AR¥6,499,0007T) K%
EYECEAUBIR FARENRITREAR
#180,000,0007T (20214 = A R#150,000,000
TT) e
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

13. Leases 13. &

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises and a warehouse
used in its operations. The Group entered into certain long-term
lease contracts for items of office premises. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land with lease periods of
50 years. Lump sum payments were made yearly upfront to acquire
certain leased office premises with lease periods of five years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of the leases
after the payments. For other leases, payments were made monthly,
quarterly and semi-annually. Leases of office premises have lease
terms between 1 and 5 years. Leases of a warehouse have lease
terms within five years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January 2021
Depreciation charge (note 7)

M2021F1A1H
WERX(K:77)

As at 31 December 2021 12021612 A31H
and 1 January 2022 N2022F1 A1H

Addition NE

Depreciation charge (note 7) WER(K:77)

As at 31 December 2022 20229 12H31H

REBEREBEA
AEEHRALEMARAEMELRENEES
# e AEBBMMAEMERBFILETRUHEE
BH - BN RN AR SHEBA50F 8
HE L - FFERBEN RN RARGERS
hFENETHRBAEYE - HFRBEHEERK
RBAXMEMREE - HtEERIEA -
ERFEEIN - WAEMEEENERA/E
54 REMEENERREFUAN - —RWE -
REBTEAREEAINALTE R BEESR
o

@) RAEEE
AEENERREENFANKEENE

BT

Office

Leasehold premises and
land a warehouse Total

WAZEYE
HELH kEE et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
49,032 902 49,934
(982) (558) (1,540)
48,050 344 48,394
- 12,905 12,905
(982) (2,587) (3,569)
47,068 10,662 57,730

The Group's leasehold land included in right-of-use assets is
situated in Mainland China and held under long lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

13. Leases (Continued) 13. HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEBBENFANEEEBERZFHNT :

during the year are as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARKETF T
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1AREREE 384 1,103
New leases HE 12,905 -
Accretion of interest recognised during F RN E3L 0
the year (note 6) (H1:t6) 433 55
Payments A (3,038) (774)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31BRIREE 10,684 384
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mENER S 2,998 384
Non-current portion FERENE D 7,686 -
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 35 HEAENDEB ST HRES T IEREM
to the consolidated financial statements. FE35HEE o
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

13. Leases (Continued) 13. HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA(E)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (0 HEZTEREEHENSTELT :

are as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEB BN (HiFe) 433 55
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 7) & A EFER S (H1:7) 3,569 1,540
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in -~ BRI EIFEMNFX
administrative expenses) (note 7) (Bt ATTER®) (H75E7) 838 1,000
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ERmPERNEEE 4,840 2,595
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 32(c) to (d) HERSRHABENEATHEREMTE
the consolidated financial statements. 320 E -
The Group as a lessor AEBERHEA
The Group leases its investment property consisting of one FEERBCEHETHHEHRENE - B
commercial property in Mainland China under operating lease R BERM e —TEEEYE - HEKRR—REK
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants HMPZHRFES - WREREERHNTRE
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments BHE - FA - AREBRIAESBAFEAR
according to the then prevailing market conditions. The net rental #5624,0007C (20214 « AR¥172,0007T) (FIFE
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB624,000 5) e

(2021: RMB172,000) (note 5).

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable 720226128318 - AEBIREEBF TR
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating HH SRS E R R R RIRFAE R
leases with its tenants are as follows: N

2022 2021

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

Within one year —FR 511 170
After one year but within two years —FREMFRN 149 -
660 170
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE

31 December 2022 2022412 H31H

14. Other Intangible Asset

14, EtERLEE

Non-compete

Software agreement*

EANES S S

RMB’000
ARETT

RMB'000

ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 R2021F 1818/
BREE
Amortisation By
Charged for the year (note 7) FRFRZ(H1517)

Carrying amount at 2021612318 K

31 December 2021 and 2022F1R18H
1 January 2022 BREE
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 24) WM B AR (H7E24)

Amortisation BiH

Charged for the year (note 7) FANRZ (A7)
Carrying amount at M202212A3184)
31 December 2022 BREE

Total

st
RMB'000
ARETFIT

22 - 22
(22) - (22)
- 17,000 17,000
- (1,999) (1,999)
= 15,001 15,001

* Non-compete agreement is the right appraised from the acquisition
of Demei Company and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its’
estimated useful life of 5.67 years by reference to the contractual term as
stipulated in the non-compete agreement.

BT A RRBEEARRMESHAER - &
2EFFGF R B AR - RE5.67FM

EtAEAFRAEERER -
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

15. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets (liabilities) during the year are
as follows:

15. IEERIE
FRNBEEHBEE(BE NWEBNT -

Fair value
adjustment
of financial
liabilities at

fair value

through

Other
intangible
asset

Expected
credit loss
profit or loss provision

BATE
5 AR
SRARY
AVEBE

RMB’000
ARETTT

BAREE
BRRE
RMB'000
ARBTT

HttBmL&E
RMB’000
RETT

At
RMB'000
ARETT

At 1 January 2021 R202151A18 - - 646 646
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRFAERN

during the year (note 9) ERERAME9) - - 214 214
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January R20215F12A318 %

2022 20221 H1RH - - 860 860
Acquisition (note 24) Wi (fiat24) - (2,550) - (2,550)
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRFTABZEN

during the year (note 9) REFTA(f729) 659 300 1,482 2,441
At 31 December 2022 F2022412A318 659 (2,250) 2,342 751

Notes: Bis

(@  As at 31 December 2022, the Group had accumulated tax losses arising ()  TR20229F12A31H - AEKER B AME L/
in Mainland China of RMB21,273,000 (2021: RMB13,278,000) that 2 FIBEE A ARK21,273,0007T (20214 -
would expire in one to five years. Deferred tax assets have not been ARHE13,278, 00071:) R — iﬁilﬁ 'Jﬁﬂ
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered probable BEp S BB AR IEEE - REW
that taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. ?;7%7[_7?7 ﬁlécu%m/ﬁﬂ—fﬁiﬁfﬁui%mﬁ%

(b)  Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding (b) REPECEMSHE - B BIR A A SN
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign B #MINRIREE SRR S AMUG 0% 78
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement R o ZBEE2008F 1 A1HEER - Wik

R2007F12 A31BEM AT o g Bl A B Hh
BB EFTERAE R D BT RS HE - Bl

is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there

156

is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2022, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group’s operations and the expansion of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB126,511,000 (2021: RMB114,914,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

15. Deferred Tax (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

15. IEERE ()
RUTBEREMS - BEHBEERDITIT -

2022 2021
RMB'000

ARMETT

RMB’000
ARBTR

Deferred tax assets BIEFRIBE B 3,001 860
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBBE (2,250) -
751 860
16. Inventories 16. T? —
At the end of the reporting period, all inventories represent WEMKR TAEFESEMEERNES, -

purchased pharmaceutical products.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB38,982,000 (2021: RMB56,339,000) were pledged
to secure the Group's other payables in respect of import agent
services as further detailed in note 22(b) to consolidated financial
statements.

17. Trade and Bills Receivables

M2022F 128318 - AEEREAEAARE
38,982,0007T (20214 : AR #56,339,0007T)
WEEEBANERE BE QR IZIRFSH E b
FOEME - B HNRA M RE N
22(b) °

17. ESEWE

R W RE

2022 2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBFIT
Trade receivables, gross )&kt 359,478 216,346
Impairment ME (9,316) (3,111)
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B SR E (G E e RE) 350,162 213,235
Bills receivables* FEUZ i 1,106 366
351,268 213,601

* Bills receivables as at 31 December 2022 were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for the
endorsement or discounting.

The Group granted credit terms ranging from 90 days to 180
days (2021: 90 days to 180 days) to customers after the delivery
of goods, except for certain customers who were required to
make payments in advance prior to the delivery of goods. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over the settlements of its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. As
at 31 December 2022, trade receivables of RMB319,381,000 (2021:
RMB281,044,000) were covered by letters of credit.

* R2022F 12 A3 AMEREEAELBES SN
AR M D E AL AT EFT ANERNSREE -

BETEFPERRNERAENRIEIN - NEE
AEFPEHRMNEREBIOKE180K(20214F ¢
90KZE 1809&)%#%% REBSRKEEMRK
W [e ) FE R IB 45 B M IS BRI B - R B S
BEEFEP DB EERRERERK - BHE
kB ATt E « 20224128318 » B5JE
U skIB A R#319,381,0007T (20214 + AR
281,044,00070) LAE FFELHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting periods, based on the date of revenue recognised and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 3 months
3to 12 months

3EAR
3Z12{8A

17. ESENFRERERERE(E)
IR IR BT A M B 5 kR
(BB EEREE) MBER ST -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMETTT
349,742 207,097
420 6,138
350,162 213,235

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B RUGRREERREESNT

2022

2021
RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
AR®T T

At beginning of year REA 3,111 2,091
Provision for impairment loss (note 7) BIEEBEREMZ7) 6,205 1,020
At end of year RER 9,316 3,111

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit loss rate. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and
coverage by other forms of insurance). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued) 17. ESRWREREWREE(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on ATEIEBASEFEARBERTENE SR
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: WA EEREB AR
As at 31 December 2022 720225 12H31H
Past due
p0g i
1t090 91to 180 More than
Current days days 180 days
BEA 1290k 91180k EiB180K
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEEX 8.41% 19% 100% 100%
Gross carrying amount FREAE
(RMB’000) (AR¥FT) 354,125 108 2,733 2,512 359,478
Covered by letters of credit MEREEE
(RMB'000) (AREFIT) (305,968) - - - (305,968)
48,157 108 2,733 2,512 53,510
Expected credit losses TEHMEEER
(RMB’000) (ARBTT) 4,050 21 2,733 2,512 9,316
As at 31 December 2021 2021128318
Past due
360 HA
1t090 91to 180 More than
Current days days 180 days
BNEA 1290K 91E180K HiA180K
Expected credit loss rate TEEMEEEER 1.84% 8.56% 61.62% 100%
Gross carrying amount BREEE
(RMB'000) (ARETIT) 207,793 6,701 28 1,824 216,346
Covered by letters of credit LAMERZEEE
(RMB'000) (AR®FT) (169,862) - - - (169,862)
37,931 6,701 28 1,824 46,484
Expected credit losses TEEREE AR
(RMB’000) (AR®BTFT) 696 574 17 1,824 3,111
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued) 17. ESRWFHEREWERE (&)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivables accepted by banks in Mainland China to certain import
agents in order to settle other payables, with a carrying amount in
aggregate of RMB25,821,000 (2021: RMB20,103,000) (collectively
referred to as the “Derecognised Bills”). The Derecognised Bills had
a maturity term from one to six months at the end of the reporting
period. All the Derecognised Bills had been accepted by Banks
which are reputable banks in the PRC and had a maturity of within
six months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with
the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the
PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion
of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and
the associated advances on discounting. The maximum exposure to
loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their face amounts. In the opinion of
the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement
in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year, no gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the years or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.

18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

Prepayments in respect of: VATNIE B B9 TR RRI8
— purchase of inventories -BERFE
— consultation service fee — ARG E

— others —EAth

Deposits in respect of: ATIEB RS
— issuance of letters of credit — N E R
— distribution rights — iR iHRE

— others — HAth
Value-added tax recoverable AJ U EE(ET
Amount due from a related party
Other receivables in respect of:

— staff advances —BI8x

- others —Hfb

Impairment VERES

18. FE{IRIE ~

el — B T7 50R
VAT IR B B E U ROR

M2022F12A8318 » AEEEEETEFERA
HIRTTARMEREE TETEARRE  UEE
BRTEEA HAR25,821,00070 (20214 : AR
#520,103,0007T ) 89 H i fE - 5/ I8 (e[ 42 E T
REWE]) o RIREHR - KRIEHEREIBE B
RAE—ZNEA - NRER - IERIEHERE
BEOEPBEMAERTEN  BEBEANBANRA -
RIE(PEAREMBEZEE) - WP BAIERIT
B BRIRREBRNFBEASTEEREER
%Uﬁ%/ﬁb EERA AREEEBBEX

DEL FEREIRBENRR RKER o Bt
Eaﬁtﬁwﬂtﬁﬁiﬁﬁm@%ﬁ§%%%
FOEREE - ASBEEKIRRERIFES R
0 A fe i 1B AR BB K P (1 3% S5 4R L RE R R R
FARBIRIBeRERARNMBEMRS - EFRA - K
SEER IEREBRNFELHENATET T E
j( o

RAEE - WENFAK R ERSEZENE
A EE - HETRFRFEEL -

HttEWRERHMWEE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
1,436 1,492
- 1,295
569 800
99,897 135,375
- 127,514
- 35,118
34,730 6,050
1 "
1,355 1,091
3,073 4,649
141,071 313,395
(77) (356)
140,994 313,039
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Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R R KizE
31 December 2022 202212 H31H

18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

(Continued)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets

are as follows:

CFANRE - HttEWREREMEE

(#&)

SEATRNRUR - HttEMRIAR A EER SR
BEEREBRREEHNT

At beginning of year REH]
Reversal of impairment loss (note 7) RERER L (HE7)
At end of year RER

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
356 520

(279) (164)

77 356

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering ECLs, which are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

In determining ECLs for financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, the Directors have taken into
account the historical default experience and the future prospects of
the industries and/or considered various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating
the probability of default of each of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets occurring within
their respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss
upon default in each case.

AEEEREBEZEBEBRIRERBREX
FEHENEREREEE  NEWmEABELRE
AT o BIRERNEERREL HEARBREN R
FERIR AL AR

KEEETABNFIR - R RUR R E b EE
MEREENTRHEEBERN  E2CERESL
BOBRRITERRAR - R/ REMEIATR
IR - AtREGRIAR AW EEN SRS RE
EEEZENEETAFESENZEEENNET
FUARBERTEQERE - ZEINENER
RIBAEBEERTR(INEE) -
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19. Bank Balances and Cash and Pledged Deposits 19. SRITEHRBEUREEFER

Cash and cash equivalents
Less: pledged deposits*

Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR S

R MRS FEY
o B R

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
436,996 381,067
(107,852) (55,015)
329,144 326,052

* The balances as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021
represented bank deposits with original maturity of less than three
months when acquired which are pledged to banks to issue letters of
credit for the purchase of pharmaceuticals.

The Group’s bank balances and cash at the end of the reporting
period can be further analysed as follows:

Denominated in RMB IAREEE
Denominated in US$* AZETTEHE
Denominated in HK$* LB TEHE
Denominated in C$* g A EHE
Denominated in S$* LAFT D3 o EtHE

* 2022412 831 8 2021412 A31 B V456415
BEERIPETBB=EAMRRRERENE
B S GmE R T IRITAIRITER ©

RIREHR - AEEMNIRITEHRRIRS A E—F
DT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETIT
284,759 257,299
69,328 74,138
72,120 47,887
= 1,704
10,789 39
436,996 381,067

* US$ stands for the United States dollar. HK$ stands for the Hong Kong
dollar. C$ stands for the Canadian dollar. S$ stands for the Singapore
dollar.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for a period of three months
and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.
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20. Trade and bills payables

B SR RIE
e &

Trade payables
Bills payables

20. EZBRARERENRE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBTTT
366,988 422,933
41,000 -
407,988 422,933

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the issuance date of the pharmaceuticals’
inspection report, is as follows:

Within 3 months 3EAR

RBEMRENEmRBRBEEHEHNESE
NFBERENEERESITAT

2022 2021
RMB'000
ARBTT

422,933

RMB'000
ARBTT

407,988

Trade and bills payables of the Group are normally settled within
120 to 180 days (2021: 120 to 180 days).

The Group's bills payables as at 31 December 2022 was secured
by the pledge of certain of the Group’s deposits amounting to
RMB41,000,000.

21. Contract Liabilities
Contract liabilities consisted of short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the sale of pharmaceuticals. Changes in
contract liabilities during the year are as follows:

NEBINE SEMNFEREMNZE—KR120K
Z180K(20214F : 120K E 180K ) NAEF ©

R2022F 128310 » AEBENEEAAEER
BE AR A41,000,0007TH0E TR RGERIERTE
R o

21. EHNAE
ANBREERHERREaE S WM EHEN
BOH - R ANAEEHNT

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBTIT

At the beginning of year REH 27,749 27,806

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract E’\i%ﬂ .#)V\ HaBERHRY

liabilities balance at the beginning of the year (note 4) Rles (Hfit4) (11,698) (27,732)
Net increase due to cash received, excluding amounts IEH&ZL@@EEE’H“}JD;‘%%E :
recognised as revenue during the year PEIERFNHER B

-] 59,378 27,675

At the end of year REFER 75,429 27,749

2022 3R FIRIRBZUERARR
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22. Other Payables and Accruals 22, HAi B RIERESTRIE
2022 2021
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B = AR¥TF ARKETFTT
Current portion: BIERER 5 -

Payables related to: BHLATIEE MRERFUA -
Payroll and welfare payable ER TE REF 4,399 2,030
Deposits received [=Alesn (a) 21,513 14,117
Consulting and professional fees BAREEE 3,324 12,616
Other tax payables HAth JEI A IE 3,780 845
Import agent services EORERS (b) 74,605 1,886
Interest payable FERTFLE = 114
Other payables HERMNRIEA 10,306 21,816
117,927 53,424

Notes: it -

(@) The balance represented refundable deposits received from the Group's (a) HBREARBEFAEELHEERBEHEGNELT
distributors according to distribution contracts in order to guarantee BIRLHAE N EWMA ARERS - ZFR
their performance under distribution contracts, which were unsecured SREERRTEHE -
and interest-free.

(b)  The balance as at 31 December 2022 mainly represented the payables (b) M2022FN2ANHNEHEIEREES T =4
to three (2021: one) independent third parties, which is principally (20214 : —H) F ER FHEORIEMEHE L
engaged in import agent services, for their settlement of part of the B=FHFHE - BERRAEE 5D ZEmER
purchase of pharmaceutical products on behalf of the Group together B FOE DA B O RR RIS RIS & - BRAME
with the service charge for the import and logistics services. Such HFEIE AT R - BRREEAR38,982,000
payables were non-interest-bearing and secured by inventories with a J0(20214 + AR#56,339,0007T) 17 & (M zE
carrying amount of RMB38,982,000 (2021: RMB56,339,000) (note 16). 16) VLR

Other than the other payables mentioned above, all other payables B b ot B qth FE T RRIES) - AEER T E M ES

of the Group are non-interest-bearing and unsecured. FIEE RN E B R AR o
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23. Bank and Other Borrowings 23. BT R HAEE
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 Maturity RMB'000
15k EfRH=
(%) H#A ARETT : ARETTL
Current: 5 -
Bank loan ROER
- Secured and guaranteed -BRAREER a) 3.50-3.65 2023 180,000 337-550 2022 80,000
Other borrowing EtfE
- Unsecured -EEA (o) - - - 379 200 127514
Current portion of long term RESERNAE fa)
bank loans - quaranteed dn-BER 275 2023 806 275 2022 806
180,806 208,320
Non-current; 8
Bank loan RIER
- Guaranteed -EER fa) 275 2024-2025 0 275 2023-2025 2,244
Other borrowing ARt
- Unsecured - &R ( - - - 1068 2003 130,000
m 132,244
181,728 340,564
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23. Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)

23. RITREMER(E)

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Analysed into:
Bank loans Repayable:

Within one year or on demand

In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Other borrowings Repayable:

Within one year or on demand
In the second year

DA
JER LA T B B EE 1
IRITER -
R—FRRIEER
REZF
NE=ZFRF
(RIEEEMF)

FERA A T B BIEE Y
HAER
R—FRFIZE K
RE-F

180,806 80,806
806 806
116 1,438

181,728 83,050

- 127,514
- 130,000
= 257,514
181,728 340,564

Notes:

Hat

(@  The Group's bank borrowings are secured and guaranteed as follows: (a)

(i) As at 31 December 2022, the bank loan of RMB180,000,000

(2021: RMB80,000,000) was secured by the G
buildings of RMB70,999,000 (2021: RMB57

roup’s certain
,159,000) and

was jointly guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Sinco

Technology”) and the Company.

(i) Asat 31 December 2022, the bank loan of RMB1,

728,000 (2021:

RMB3,050,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin.
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@

(i)

R20224 128318 RITERARE
180,000,0007T.(20214F : AR #:80,000,000
TL) RS EE F1F AR 70,999,0007T
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R
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23.

24,

Bank and Other Borrowings (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The balance represented the interest-bearing borrowing amounting
to US$20.0 million granted by a third party as at 31 December 2021.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the third party made a
payment of US$20.0 million to the Group’s supplier on behalf of the
Group as the deposit for the relevant distribution rights granted. On
26 January 2022, the supplier repaid the deposit to the third party.
Since the date of the repayment, the Group derecognised the interest-
bearing borrowing of US$20.0 million due to the third party and the
other receivables of US$20.0 million due from the supplier.

(c)  The balance represented the interest-bearing borrowing amounting to
RMB130.0 million granted by a third party as at 31 December 2021.

(d) As at 31 December 2022, except for the bank loan which was
denominated in HK$ amounting to RMB1,728,000 (2021: RMB3,050,000),
all bank loans were denominated in RMB.

Business Combination

On 10 May 2022, Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited Company (79)l]
BRI AR AR AR]) (an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) acquired 100% equity interest in Deyang Yisida
Biotech Limited ({EfZ{E B EEMEHEERR AR, “"Deyang Yisida"),
which owns and controls 70% equity interest in Demei Company,
at a consideration of up to RMB66.5 million from Guanghan Fire
Genie E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (BEARESFEIBEREERD
al, the “Vendor A"”). On the same day, Mr. Huang Zhijian (the son
of Mr. Huang Xiangbin who is the executive director, chairman
of the board of directors and the substantial shareholder of the
Company) acquired 100% equity interest in Renshangren, which
owns the remaining 30% equity interest in Demei Company, at a
consideration of up to RMB28.5 million from Guanghan Haozheng
Trading Co., Ltd. (BEMEFRAEEREEAR], the “Vendor B”).
The Vendor A and the Vendor B are collectively referred to as the
“Vendors”.

23.

24,

RITREMEKE)
Wiz - (&)

(b) HBREFEEHFE=HN2021F12A831BEFHE
BE200BEET - HZE2021F12A31HILF
B FEARAEERAERH-EREZ20.08
EETIEAEBE R LLHEENILS - K2022
F1A268  HEFEEZFEERS -  BEX
2B AEERIERAERMNE=FNTEER
20.0 8 &3 T R FE U e vl 9 Ho b FE U5/ TR 20.0
BEXET°

(0 HEBEM20021FI2A3EBHEZFRTHE
ERARE13008E T °

(d) 720224128318 - BeEAARY1,728,000
Tt (20214 + AFR#3,050,0007T ) FERTT B 5 A
BITEHESN - FTAIRITERHUARKESHE -

Yy S

M2022F58108 - ARAIEZEE2ENBA RN
NERREMRIBERARIAEENEESTH
BAEREAARIERADKEEBEEEEY
REERAR([EREEE]  EEa RIEHE
ERRT0%AE) 2 IAE - REATBRAR
o6 SEETT ° AA - ERELA(RARMRT
EE BEETFERTIERRECEWEEZT)
MEEMEEFREERETAR(EABKE
CRC(EEAEERRFIH30% ) 2R
- REATHBBARKE2858ETT - BEAAK
BEHBHEES] -
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24. Business Combination (Continued) 24, ¥ E/(E)

Upon the completion of the acquisition of Deyang Yisida, the TRMEEGERER  ARFIRERBRERE
Company indirectly held 70% equity interest in Demei Company. NRT0%MHE - BBITIHEKEOLHH—F
Through the entering into of a series of agreements constituting ([ EVIEANLHEE]) - NEBARERT
contractual arrangements (the “old VIE Contractual Arrangements”), C2EIRE R EENRIFIA30% RIERLE R
the Group is entitled to exercise effective control over both MIEEEITEARUEHE  WEAHEEANK
operational and financial matters and enjoy the economic benefits RS o WEEEIGE R iE NN Sl U
derived from the entire equity interest in Renshangren and the BEE] - FAWESEREVESOTHNES
remaining 30% equity interest in Demei Company. The acquisition 5 BAMARARBEAE2022F3A22HK
of Deyang Yisida and the acquisition of Renshangren are collectively 20225 410BMAE °

referred to as the “Acquisition”. Please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 22 March 2022 and 10 May 2022 for
more details about the Acquisition and the old VIE Contractual

Arrangements.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Demei EENTR2022FE5 108 0 HBIEELAEY
Company as at the 10 May 2022 are as follows: NEPEAT
Fair value
recognised on
the
Acquisition
BB EIER
FRTERR
AFE
RMB’000
ARET T
(unaudited)
(RE&ER)
Property, plant and equipment (note 117) MIE - BB (AT T) 3,459
Other intangible asset — Non-compete agreement (note 14) HEibhEREE —IEFFHE (M7 14) 17,000
Deferred tax liabilities (note 15) EERIEBE(HE15) (2,550)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RATEAENHEEEFEERE 17,909
Goodwill on acquisition* IR B 66,536
Purchase consideration transferred EEREERE 84,445
Purchase consideration transferred satisfied by: EHEEEENREUTIARNER
Cash Re 68,000
Contingent consideration payable (note 25) FERTSARE (HE25) 16,445
84,445

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Acquisition ERUESENRSRE

is as follows: DA
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FTAEZE2022F 128318 IEFE
cash flows used in investing activities during the HETHIARERENER S K
year ended 31 December 2022 ReEEMRLF8 68,000
*  The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected * EEREEIEZRERGHEERNRNEERE
synergies and other benefits from combining the assets and activities TS E A5 SR B0 TE By R 80P e LAt 25 - EFERR TS
of Demei Company. The goodwill recognised is not expected to be BIEAT TR INFTISE ©

deductible for income tax purposes.
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24, £SO (E)

24. Business Combination (Continued)

Contribution to the Group’s revenue and consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 December 2022 since the acquisition date are as
follows:

BUEE B ERfE - B E2022F 12 A31 B LFEY
AEBE WS R A B FNERIT

RMB’000
ARET T

Revenue e 12,192
Consolidated profit RE T 4,341
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the HEFRAREERIARET ERRNERRKE

revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would

RAEBEENEA

be:
RMB’000
AR®T

Revenue Wzs

Consolidated profit A E A

2,278,483
87,040

Demei Company

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
business combinations has been allocated to the CGU of Demei
Company.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of Demei Company and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

At 31 December 2022, the recoverable amounts of this CGU
had been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections covering a 5-year period,
based on financial budgets approved by management and a
discount rate of 19.29% per annum. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated with a 2.3% growth rate. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth rate forecast and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate of the relevant industry.
No impairment loss is considered necessary for Demei Company.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budget
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management'’s expectations for the market
development. The Directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGU of Demei Company to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.

4
(EE NG

SREARTS - EBaHELNHEES SR T
BEATNREELSN -

BEARTREIS EHIERHE RAMERS
AT :

20224128318 :Ziﬁﬁfkiiﬁmﬁwz@
CHEOREFEREENE o ETHEFEERN
EIBEATHL AR ISR ﬁﬁﬁ @;%ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁaﬁfi &

ETEA R EFF19.29%MEIRE - AFHEHIR
SREIL23%HIEREREE - ZEREENE
BATTEMIERETEA - BN HBBARITEN T
REERE - XN RIREBDAELRERE -

EREBEAENHEBEZRRERSRARH
WA AR EhEEREHERENK - 5
EETENZEMNBERANEEEH SRR
MTEH - BERA - HAMFREAEHRNE
ﬂ/\fi AT ERE AR RS EL BN
HEMERBZIREEL B UOI 8% -
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25.

26.

170

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss

As part of the series of agreements with the Vendors, a contingent
consideration is payable, which is dependent on the profit of Demei
Company of each year of the years ended 31 December 2022,
2023 and 2024. At the acquisition date, the fair value of the initial
amount recognised was estimated to be RMB 16,445,000 which was
determined using the scenario analysis method and is within Level
3 fair value measurement. As at 31 December 2022, the contingent
consideration payable was remeasured as RMB19,078,000 at
fair value. A significant increase/decrease in the profit of Demei
Company would result in a significant change in the fair value of
the contingent consideration payable. The contingent consideration
payable is classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. A reconciliation of fair value measurement of the contingent
consideration payable is provided below:

5. BNV EFFABENESHMAE

ERHEBE VM —RIBEA—E D - AR
BREFEEZARNEE20224 « 2023F %2024
FIRANBUEFESFORFNZN - RUEER
B BEZNVRSENRAFEGEFAARE
16,445,0007T * ABELITEEE  BRE=
WAFEFE - 20229128318 © BAEA
REZEAFEEFEAARY19,078,0007T °
BN EIRYEFIARNEIE IR S BB E N A
RENAFERESAEH - BAIKARESLE
BIEAFEFABSNEHBARE - BIKARE
AT ERTELENT ¢

RMB’000
ARET T

Arising on business combination (note 24) e HEE(N124) 16,445
Unrealised fair value change recognised in profit or loss RIEEEF R AREIR AL EES 2,633
As at 31 December 2022 20229 12H31H 19,078
Share Capital 26. B
Shares &)

Authorised: JETE
10,000,000,000 (2021: 10,000,000,000)

2022 2021

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARET T

10,000,000,0000% (202 14F :

ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each 10,000,000,000/%)
BAREAEO.000175 T ) E iBAR 822 822
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAE

2,032,890,585 (2021: 1,872,890,585)
ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each

2,032,890,5850% (20214 :
1,872,890,5850%)

FAREI{E0.000178 TLHY AR 164 151
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26. Share Capital (Continued)
Shares (Continued)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

At 1 January 2021 M2021F1A1H
Issue of new shares BITH R D
Share options exercised AT R

At 31 December 2021 and

Issue of new shares

At 31 December 2022

R2021% 128318 X
2022F1H1H
BITHRD

1 January 2022

2022412 A31H

26. BA ()
B3 ()
ARFRAZBEENT :

Number of Share capital

share in issue RMB’'000
ERITRG R

2B AR¥T T

1,691,890,585 136

(@) 169,000,000 14
(b) 12,000,000 1
1,872,890,585 151

(©) 160,000,000 13
2,032,890,585 164

Notes:

(a)

()

(@

On 23 July 2021, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with the subscribers, agreeing to allot and issue a total of 169,000,000
subscription shares at a subscription price of HK$0.5 per subscription
share. On 28 September 2021, a total of 169,000,000 subscription
shares were allotted and issued to the subscribers at the subscription
price of HK$0.5 per subscription share, resulting in new share capital of
HK$16,900 (before issue expenses).

The 12,000,000 share options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2021 resulted in the issue of 12,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company and new share capital of HK$1,200 (before issue
expenses).

On 3 January 2022, a total of 160,000,000 placing shares were
allocated and issued to the placees at the price of HK$1.29 per share,
resulting new share capital of HK$16,000 (before issue expenses).

wiz -

(b)

(@

R2021F7A238 » ANEEERE A LRED
H o REEREESRAEBRM 0SB A K
%174 169,000,000 A% R EE AR 1D © 72202149
A28H - & $£169,000,000% 5288 % {7 A 32 B (B
FRBERGOSHETEEEREITFREA
EEFTIEALAN16,90078 7T (FNKR A1 TRISZAT) °

REZE20214912 A31 B L FE 171#12,000,000
157 B RS HE 3B B35 77 12,000,000 % 21X &) & 38 A% K
FTILAR AR, 20078 7T (FOBREET TR A ) ©

202241 H38 » A #£160,000,000% f2 & f% 15
RER 29T ERR S RIEITTARA - &
ST IR AN 16,0008 T (FOBREE1TRISAT) ©
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27. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the development of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are
employees (whether full time or part time) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”), including directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and the senior management
of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity. The Share
Option Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 1
February 2016 and became effective upon the listing of the shares
of the Company and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from 1 February 2016. Please refer to
the 2016 annual report of the Company for details.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

27. BB RESTE

AR EEVEERAERTBI([MEARAERTE)) - BEM
AAEEERELNERNA AR HERERE
R ek - R BINAER2MEBAAR -
HEWBRARSANER BB EARENEMEE
([REERDMES (ERE2BIGER)  BIEX
AR EMB AR RIS EEENES(RIE
BMIENITER) RERERE - BREEID
F20164F2 A1 BEAR R R AL AL AR F
Bty Emig sk - ARRIESITECHS(EE] - B
1520162 A1 AT+ FAERBFR - B4
B - BRMEART20165FEELR -

RAEE - BRI T A LT BN RT
1%

Weighted

average Number of

exercise price

options
BREHE
‘000

T

InfEF T EE
HKS$ per Share
BRET

Notes

B

As at 1 January 2022 ®2022F1 /318 (i) 0.568 1,150

Forfeited during the year REFERRUK (ii) 0.568 (1,150)

As at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H (i) - -
Notes: HKiaF

(i) There is no share options outstanding as at 31 December 2022. The
share options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 represented
1,150,000 share options granted by the Company on 21 September
2016 at an exercise price of HK$0.568 per share to certain eligible
participants of the Company in respect of their contributions to the
Group's development under the Share Option Scheme.

(i)~ The 1,150,000 share options granted to one employee under the Share
Option Scheme were forfeited due to expiry of option period on 20
September 2022.
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27. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 27. [BIRRESTEI(E)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

31 December 2021

Number of Exercise price

options per share

fBREHE

Exercise period
BRITEE 1T
‘000 HK$

R2021F12A318 » WARITFEBRENITERE
MATERT -

2021412 A31H

T BT

From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022

201749A21H%202269H20H

From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022

201859 H21HZE202269H20H

From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022

2019%9A21H%202269H20H

460 0.568

345 0.568

345 0.568
1,150

There was no share option expense recognised during the reporting
periods.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 48.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

RIS MBS EER AR -

RIFERE IR s E B EN AT
ERNR L B BB EEHS T - W&
Ko P H B B MO R e 1A = TIREFIPTER A
BB ABUR

A% B (%) =
TEHR 1R (%) 48.75
2 [ P K %R (%) 0.72

TEHR U8 R BRI 2R IR A AR R R IEBE R
® I ERBRERLE

AEATERBEMCDRLBRENEME
e

R2022F 128318 » A ARIMEERRERTEIE T
I SRR 1A R 1T o
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28. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial

statements.

(@)

(b)

()

174

Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Cayman Islands Companies Law. Under the constitutional
documents and the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the share
premium is distributable as a dividend on the condition that
the Company is able to pay its debts when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business at the time the proposed dividend is
to be paid.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the aggregate nominal
amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("PRC GAAP"), to the statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR")
until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As certain PRC subsidiaries are wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises, allocation to the SSR is not required. According to
the Rules for the Implementation of Foreign-funded Enterprise
Law of the PRC and articles of association of these PRC
subsidiaries, they are required to allocate 10% of their profit
after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF") until such reserve reaches 50% of their
respective registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.
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28. f#E(E)
(d) EBRRfEREE

28. Reserves (Continued)
(d) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

There was no transfer from the share option reserve to share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB2,210,000). An
amount of RMB219,000 (2021: RMB477,000) was transferred
from the share option reserve to retained profits because the
1,150,000 share options were forfeited due to expiry of option
period on 20 September 2022 (2021: 2,500,000 share options
were forfeited following an employee's resignation from the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021).

BREREEECRBERRITERBRE
HRATE - E— BB RS SRR
A2 A AR RE R MR S ETBUR
WD - 3% & B AERE R R T (i
BREERMEER - N AEERED
HHOR WS R BRG] o

RELZE2022F 12 A31 B L FE B EETT
F1%  WERBEREREEREROEE
BR (20214 « AFR#2,210,0007T) » R
1,150,00017 i A% e (5 HE A i BAPR 72022 8
9 A20 R J&)m m # 2 % (20214 : 2,500,000
PEREREE2021F12A31HLFERE
—ZEEMEARBERERL) - BEAR
#£219,0007C(20214F + AR¥477,0007T)
MR BEERERBRER o

29. Commitments 29, i
AEBRREHROEAEEZNT ¢

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T

Contracted, but not provided for: BETHMERFHR A -
— Construction of a warehouse —EHREE 27,322 83,008
— Furbishing of a property — BT 18,338 2,256

45,660 85,264

30. RARAE
RIFEEIR - AREEREIMEANAEE -

30. Contingent Liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.
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31. Related Party Transactions
(@) During the year, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties:

. BELXRS

(a) F/ - AEEMEBETETHER
ZHIT

Guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin HEEW R EER
Interest-bearing bank loan FHEIRITER
Amount due from Risun JEUTRisUnFRIA

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTT
180,000 80,000
11 11

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

(b) AEBEZEEASHH

the Group

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Short-term employee benefits RHESET 5,558 2,338
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHK 213 51

Total compensation paid to XN FEEEEAEN
key management personnel HNezE 5,771 2,389

32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had non-
cash additions to short-term borrowings and other receivables
of RMB127,514,000 and RMB127,514,000, respectively, in
respect of arrangements for the payment of the deposit for
the relevant distribution rights granted by the Group’s supplier
(note 23(b)).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered
into certain lease contracts in which additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities amounting to RMB12,905,000 (2021:
nil) and RMB 12,905,000 (2021: nil) was recognised at the lease
commencement date respectively.
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(a) FEHFRERSH
HE2021F12A318LFE  iAEH
HERE TIHEBCHEENIZSNREZER
= ASREEEBERREERIBNIE
BEaRNED R AARE127,514,0007T %A
R#127,514,0007C(F5E23(b)) °
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32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 32. ZE8EHERERMT(E)
Flows (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities
Year ended 31 December 2022

(b) BEFBFELENREZH

HZE2022F 128318 LEE

Lease

Other
payables

liabilities and accruals

HEAE
RMB’000

ARETT

Het A
RIER
PESHRRIA
RMB’000
ARET T

Bank and
other

borrowings

RITR
HifE =
RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January 2022 M202291H1H 384 1,886 340,564

Changes from financing cash flows BmERESREEH (3,045) 72,719 (158,836)

Foreign exchange movement HNE B B 7 - -

Other non-cash movement HIER S8 12,905 = =

Interest expense FEEZH 433 = -

At 31 December 2022 72022912 831H 10,684 74,605 181,728
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12A31BILEE

Lease
IETIES

HER/E
RMB’000
ARBT T

Other
payables
and accruals
EH AR
IR
FE&H IR
RMB’'000
ARETTT

Bank and
other
borrowings

RITR

H AR
RMB’000
AEBTT

At 1 January 2021 R2021F1/81H 1,103 117,848 81,028
Changes from financing cash flows BERESREEH (774) (115,962) 132,063
Foreign exchange movement HNEEE) - - (41)
Other non-cash movement HAIER S E) - - 127,514
Interest expense FEZH 55 - -
At 31 December 2021 72021412 831H 384 1,886 340,564
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32. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 32. LB REXZMET(E)
Flows (Continued)

() Total cash outflow for leases (c0 HERSRHHELEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated HERSRERANNHEER S RHAZEM
statement of cash flows is as follows: N
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
Within operating activities BB 838 1,000
Within financing activities BREEEE 3,045 774
3,883 1,774
33. Financial Instruments by Category 33. @RI T AR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHEANSRITANKEHROERBENT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H
Financial assets SMEE

Financial assets
at amortised cost

BB

HTERNEREE

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade and bills receivables B 5 EMGRIE R EW SRR 351,268
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERFIE - E i EUGRIE &

other receivables and other assets HihBEMNSREE 102,623

Pledged deposits [EEiieesN 107,852

Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 329,144

890,887
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33. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 33. EMITEERI(E)
31 December 2022 (Continued) 2022F 128318 (&)
Financial liabilities SmasE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

BB AR
HEmasE
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade and bills payables E SN R ENRIE 407,988
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals &+ A E b FE < 5018 & E 5+ 0B EY
EA =N 35,948
Bank and other borrowings HRITREMER 181,728
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EATEFAEENEREE 19,078
Lease liabilities HEAaE 10,684
655,426
31 December 2021 20215 12H31H
Financial assets SREE

Financial assets

at amortised cost

RSP AN

ATEMSREE

RMB’000

AREETIT

Trade and bills receivables B 5 EMGRIE R ERER R 213,601
Financial assets included in prepayments, FIATERFIE - H A EUGRIE &

other receivables and other assets HEMEENSREE 303,402

Pledged deposits [REEHIESN 55,015

Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 326,052

898,070
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33. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued)
31 December 2021 (Continued)
Financial liabilities

33. 2R T EERI(E)
20215128318 (&)
SHas

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

RS AN 2

NEEEE

RMB’000

ARETT

Trade payables B S EMNRE 422,933
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals &+ A E b FE < 5018 & E 5+ R0IE HY

EA =N 50,549

Bank and other borrowings HRITREMER 340,564

Lease liabilities HEAaE 384

814,430

34. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as
follows:

RMB’000
ARBT T

34. ERMTRARNFERDIFEER

FRAETE (B R A2 IS8 SR AP E S ARE &)
ARESRMIASN  FEREZETANKEER
AFELT -

Fair value

AVE
2022
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Carrying amounts

AREIE

2022 2021
RMB’000

ARETTT

2021
RMB'000
ARETT

Financial liabilities ERBE
Non-current portion: FEENEREL S -
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 922 2,244 868 2,137
Other borrowings HEm - 130,000 - 131,349
922 132,244 868 133,486
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34. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of bank balances and
cash, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals and current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result
of the Group’s own non-performance risk for non-current financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2022 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of contingent consideration payable have been
calculated by scenario based method by an independent
professionally qualified valuer, below is a summary of significant
unobservable inputs to the valuation as at 31 December 2022:

3. TRTEANTFERAFEER(E)

EEECHHRITEHRLRE CEAER B
SIEYGRIA N BN - BSRNFRBALENER
1B AEATENFUR - HtbRUGIAE N EMEER
EREE - FEARMBNRIEREAFIEN SR
BEN R BIRITREMER A FEEE
FREEARE - TEARZEFTAREHAZHE -

TREEMBENDTERERT (WIERIEL
BREE) ZENERR SR AETRBRENTE
e AR - ARG A FENF R RERHRN
T~

JERNEREH B ERTTE R A FEN A G BELUER -
EERKR &G TEIE A8 T AIRE R B F a5
WIBEAARKIR B MELAEFE - 72022512 A
318 AKEASBHERDCRBENTE
YR EATERK -

R SARENRA T ERBE EESERHER
HABSETESYE LT AN20226F12A31
AMENEATABRREASESE

Valuation Significant Increase/  Sensitivity of fair
Technique unobservable input (decrease) value to the input
BERTIHE
HESE WABE TH(THE) AFEHRABBNSEE
Financial liabilities at fair ~ Scenario based method Target net income change 10%/  10% increase or decrease in
value through profit or range (10%) net income would result

loss

BATER AR B
TRERE

BIRFRAESHE

in an increase in fair value
by RMB791,824 and a
decrease in fair value by
RMB1,266,609.

10%/  SFWA A TRE10%EEH
(10%)  RFEEMARET91,8247T
RATHERDARE
1,266,6097T °
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34. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 34. @R TEAFERAFEER(E)
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy N EER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TREAAEEEHTENATEFEER ¢

of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: B FEGTENEE -

Fair value measurement using

AFEFEFER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RN EXABRE EBEATUERE
HE BARE BARE

(F—4) (E=#) (HE=R) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AR%TR AR%ETR AR%T T
Bills receivables: [EWEE -
As at 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H - 1,106 - 1,106
As at 31 December 2021 2021%F12A831H - 366 - 366
Liabilities measured at fair value: B FEFTENEE -
As at 31 December 2022 120225128318
Fair value measurement using
ALEHEER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERTIE EATBR EBEAFUHEER
HR{E WABE WARE
(F—4) (E=#) (B=R) oh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Financial liabilities at fair value BRATER ABR
through profit or loss SRBE - - 19,078 19,078
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RER - BemEEReRAGENS @ KK
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 FE_RzEREATEFEEYS - IR A
for both financial assets and financial liabilities. HE=R -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. MK EMEEEERBE

Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank and other
borrowings, pledged deposits and bank balances and cash. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank and other
borrowings are disclosed in note 23.

The Group had no material exposure to the risk of changes in the
market interest rates as the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates were short term.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing borrowings through the use of fixed
rates. In addition, the Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge against interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's purchases of products from the overseas suppliers are
conducted in US$. Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, interest-bearing
bank loans and trade payables, that are denominated in S$, US$ and
HK$.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

FEFENTECRTABERITREMER - B
ERFTARRITEHRLRE - ZFERTAT
EEERNEEREERET - AEEAZER
heREERAE MELBERELNESE
WHIR R EWER - fEATBMFOR - HAdEYEEK
ENAMEENSREE - BHENRBEUEE
ARG N TR R FIRNERAE -

AEFESRTAEANTIERBRAMEZAR - S
ERE  FERRMADECRR - EFEWE
KBEBSK - WERZERR - ZERBRAN
™o

AR @R
SRAT B E o A8 3R 0 ) 3 KR AR AP 238

= o

BHRASERT BN EEBEETBREREL - &K
REE W EMERTAEATSH SR

AREEEBE R EEN R E IR E 2 ARG S BT
ELENRERENTRL o 1LI) - REEILE(E
FREATR R RS F R o

SN LB
REBUAETREIMIERBEER - AEEX
MOBERBBEUAREHE  EETHRERR
2EEBY  BHRYSUR - HEEEUR - 5TR
RITEFRRE ZENFREB AR T - E7T
KBTCAHE ©

ARERE EET SRR S A B IR R INE
RE o BEREGERAREIINERR - LKER
FEEREBETEAINERL
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change
in RMB against US$, HK$ and S$. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analysis of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period has been determined based on the adjustment of
translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$, HK$ and
S$, respectively, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
(due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, interest-bearing bank loans and trade payables
denominated in US$, HK$ and S$):

35. KEREEEERBER(E)

HSNEE B (48 )
TRIRARERZETT « BT T oiE R &
FH5.0%HBRE - 5.0% BRNLRATEEEAE
2HREERRTALE - AEREBHINEEERES
A REE B AT - NEEN S MEBAREEmE
HIINGE [BL BRI TS DT - EARIRTE T A At
EBRFTENBERT RARBELET BT
R s e lE R E8)5.0% 5 B AR S IREH K
EMEAENBEREEBHAEEEE202F R
2021 F 12 A3 1B EFERBANENNFEETE
(BARAZET « BRI INETHENE S KR
SEEY EHERFE - st ERITERNERN
BB HESBAE) ¢

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
US$/HK$/C$/S$ (decrease) in
rate % profit after tax
Ex/ B/
Inie,/ 5 hnsE TR BB % F
EH (T % #mn, Gid)
RMB’000
ARETR
2022 20224
If RMB weakens against US$ WAREHETRE (5) (3.337)
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR HETHE 5 3,337
If RMB weakens against HK$ i AREE W Tz (B (5) (2,939)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i ANRBE R ETIHE 5 2,939
If RMB weakens against S$ fist A RIS S g e iz (8 (5) (467)
If RMB strengthens against S$ fis] AR S s T HHE 5 467
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
US$/HK$/C$/S$ (decrease) in
rate % profit after tax
x5,/ Bt
TN R 2= BRI 1&%m
EACRBE) % i, Crd)
RMB’000
ARBTFT
2021 20214
If RMB weakens against US$ i AR A E TR E (5) 4,504
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AREE W 2T HHE 5 (4,504)
If RMB weakens against HK$ i AR R B TR E (5) (2,589)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ AR L BTHE 5 2,589
If RMB weakens against C$ i AR T E (5) 2
If RMB strengthens against C$ W AREE S T AHE 5 )
If RMB weakens against S$ it AR IE S s e Bz (8 (5) (467)
If RMB strengthens against S$ fis] AR S 3 T HHE 5 467
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35 MKEMREEEERBER(E)

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group manages this risk by requiring payment in advance
from certain customers and offering standardised credit terms to
certain customers for a credit period ranging from 0 to 180 days. As
disclosed in note 17, the Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and senior management regularly reviews
the overdue balances.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

12-month
ECLs

Stage 1
1218 A
FEER

FEER
AEEBRERETEPIRAINREAETEP
RENFOR180ARMFEFEMEEZAR
AP RE1T7PTINER - AN D SRE E i AR U B A
FEM TR E R B IES) - ERAEEEEH
EFI BN o

BE A O RFKRDE
TREFMEAEEEERREERBRHNEES
EhEREREO - BRIFEAMN DAL SR
AESHMER  TRIEZIZENBMER - U
RR12ZANENFERDBOE - 228 AS
BEENBKREE -

Lifetime ECLs
FENRBEEEE

Simplified

Stage 2 Stage 3 approach

F-K& SRR FZRR LA b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AR®TR  AR®TR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR

31 December 2022 2022F12A318
Trade receivables* eV - - - 359,478 359,478
Bills receivables W ERE 1,106 - - - 1,106
Financial assets included in STATBNRIE - Aft

prepayments, other receivables AR E B ER

and other assets** SREE - 102,700 - = 102,700
Pledged deposits BERER

— Not yet past due eI 107,852 - - - 107,852
Bank balances and cash FITESREAS

— Not yet past due — R 329,144 - - - 329,144

438,102 102,700 - 359,478 900,280
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BiREKREEEERKE (&)
Policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EEREE)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) RSO R F RSB ()
Lifetime ECLs
12-month
ECLs Simplified
Stage 1 NEW) Stage 3 approach
1218 AT
EEE
F—TRE FPRER E=RR A E Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT  ARETET ARETFT
31 December 2021 20214124318
Trade receivables* 2 S IEWFIE* - - - 216,346 216,346
Bills receivables R & 366 - - - 366
Financial assets included in STABNZE - Eft
prepayments, other receivables AR EMEER
and other assets** SREE - 303,758 - - 303,758
Pledged deposits BERER
- Not yet past due — R 55,015 - - - 55,015
Bank balances and cash BITHEBRRERS
- Not yet past due — WA 326,052 - - - 326,052
381,433 303,758 - 327,528 901,537
*  For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RAREERAGCEETRENE S EWRFIET
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is T ERBHEEENER NGRS B HREME7
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. ER o
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, o fEt ATAERIRIE - A EUGRIE R M EEN ©
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when MEEVKROMHAMEENBETZSSHEEN
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the EERME VS ERARBERER - AIEEFEEE
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial RWREER ] - BRI ZEERMEENEEER
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is RERIEFRE
considered to be “doubtful”.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit BUEAEEFEREKREE S ENZIENZERRE
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the HE— 88 REAMBREWIT17H
consolidated financial statements. & o
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and its own funding sources.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

35. KEREEEERBER(E)

REBEE MR
AEEERERCRARREMEENIHAN
MIEFHEEREREEEESRRAR

AEE® B REREBEM SRITREAMETA
REBFESHRMERESHAELTE R F
-

UTRAEEEREENREARENS LR
BN BB :

2022

(0])]
demand

BER
RMB’000
AR®T T

Less than
12 months
DR12{8 B

RMB’000
AR®T T

1to5
years
1E55
RMB’000
AR®TT

Total

et
RMB’000
AR®T T

Bank and other borrowings RITRE M AR - 182,807 975 183,782
Lease liabilities HEBE - 3,587 8,763 12,350
Trade and bills payables E Z N FRIE R ERNEE - 407,988 - 407,988

Financial liabilities included in SFAE MRS FRIE &
other payables and accruals EETRCER SR BE 35,948 - - 35,948

Financial liabilities at fair value BN ERAEEN
through profit or loss SRBaE - - 27,000 27,000
35,948 594,382 36,738 667,068

On
demand

RER
RMB’000
AR®ETT

2021

Less than
12 months
L1218 B
RMB’'000
ARBFIT

1t05
years
125
RMB’000
AREETIT

Total

HeEr
RMB’000
AREETTT

Bank and other borrowings RITREMER - 224,384 146,107 370,491
Lease liabilities HEBE - 392 - 392
Trade payables 2 ZENFIA - 422,933 - 422,933

Financial liabilities included in T A M FER FRIE K
other payables and accruals JEETF BN SRS 50,549 - - 50,549
50,549 647,709 146,107 844,365
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or raise new capital from its investors. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing financial
risk during the year.

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations and proceeds from the
new bank and other borrowings. The Group monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net
debt includes financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
bank and other borrowings, trade and bills payables, other payables
and accruals, tax payable and lease liabilities, less bank balances
and cash and pledged deposits. Equity includes equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. The gearing ratios at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:
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31 December 2022 202212 H31H

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BIEREEEERBE (&)
Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued) BEREE(E)
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARKETFTT
Bank and other borrowings AT REAMAET 181,728 340,564
Trade and bills payables B S ENRIBRENEE 407,988 422,933
Other payables and accruals H e (T RRIB K R T FIE 117,927 53,424
Tax payable FENBLIR 5,437 12,826
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss A TEFABZHEHEE 19,078 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 10,684 384
Less: Bank balances and cash o RITRER KRR S (329,144) (326,052)
Pledged deposits BHERER (107,852) (55,015)
Net debt BfEFE 305,846 449,064
Equity s 603,812 374,886
Equity and net debt BHERBEFE 909,658 823,950
Gearing ratio B E 33.6% 54.5%
36. Dividends 36. B2
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend AIBEEIRIE » RAFETEZHE20024F
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 of HK0.98 cents 12831 B - FER RIS S%EmIE0.98%5
(2021: final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December (20214 : B E2021F12A31HIFEEHER
2021 of HK nil cents) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of EiNE B =) - 42%E A20,000,0007% 7T (2021
HK$20,000,000 (2021: HK$nil), has been proposed by the directors I AKKRERERRE RS FILE
of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the FEER o REIRR B RENARRE B HAZ/TESN
forthcoming general meeting. The final dividend has been calculated #92,032,890,5850% B B TR (D EHE o

by reference to the 2,032,890,585 issued shares outstanding as at
the date of this report.
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37. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  37. &2 T B &R R &

Information about the statement of financial position of the BRARARNRRERRNT A RREROT ¢
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMBARMIRE 107,056 97,497
Total non-current asset FRBEELE 107,056 97,497
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TEFRIE 270 588
Other receivables E A e GRTE 36 28
Amounts due from subsidiaries R B A RIFIE 99,281 3,320
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 42,627 33,372
Total current assets REEEHAE 142,214 37,308
CURRENT LIABILITY RENEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FERT—FE I8 A RIRIE 13,977 57,285
Total current liability REAEEE 13,977 57,285
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEEFE(AETFH) 128,237 (19,977)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTDER 235,293 77,520
Net assets EERE 235,293 77,520
EQUITY e
Issued capital BT 164 151
Reserves (note) () 235,129 77,369
Total equity R 235,293 77,520
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37. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 37. XA FB iR & (&)
(Continued)
Note: Biat -

ARARBEBNT *

The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows:

Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
FERRE AR REtEiE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARKETTT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12A31A &

1 January 2022 20221818 366,682 696 (290,009) 77,369
Issue of new shares BATHIR(D 165,518 - - 165,518
Share issue expenses R BT (6,067) (6,067)
Forfeiture of share options SR B AR AE - (696) 696 -
Loss and total comprehensive FREEBN

expense for the year P EFZ A - - (1,691) (1,691)
At 31 December 2022 20224 12A31H 526,133 - (291,004) 235,129
At 31 December 2020 and 202012 A318 &

1 January 2021 20211818 289,113 2,906 (283,437) 8,582
Equity-settled share option ARAE 4L B BRI 2o BE

arrangement (note 27) (Hiz#27) 7,777 (2,210) - 5,567
Issue of new shares TR 70,161 - - 70,161
Share issue expenses R EATRZ (369) - - (369)
Loss and total comprehensive FREEBN

expense for the year 2EMAS B - - (6,572) (6,572)
At 31 December 2021 R2021412 8318 366,682 696 (290,009) 77,369
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38.

39.

192

Approval of the Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2023.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

The Group mainly participates in the mandatory pension fund and
social insurance schemes for its employees in the PRC, Singapore
and Hong Kong.

The Group operates a MPF scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The employees of the Group’s Singapore subsidiaries
are members of the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore
operated by the Government of Singapore. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligations of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes.

The Group had no forfeited contributions under the MPF Scheme
and its retirement benefits schemes in the PRC and Singapore which
may be used to reduce the existing level of contributions during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and at the end of the reporting
period (2021: nil).
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40. Subsequent Significant Event After the 40. REHENHEHEEAEE

Reporting Period

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 26
September 2022, 30 September 2022, 24 October 2022, 8
December 2022, 13 December 2022, and 4 January 2023, the
Company, on 15 September 2022, received the Letter from EY,
being the then auditors of the Company, informing that there might
be possible internal control irregularities (“Incident”), which involved
transactions that took place in January 2022 with a sum equivalent
to US$13 million (approximately HK$100 million).

On 17 September 2022, the Board resolved to establish the
Independent Committee to review and investigate the Incident,
which comprised of four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit, Mr. Wang Qing, Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Bai Zhizhong.

Having considered the current information and evidence available to
the Company was insufficient and therefore a proper investigation
of the Incident with the assistance of an external forensic accountant
was necessary, on 21 December 2022, the Independent Committee
appointed Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited (“Forensic
Accountant”) as an independent forensic accountant to conduct
an independent forensic investigation into the Incident (“Forensic
Investigation”) and produce a report on the findings of the Forensic
Investigation to be presented to the Independent Committee.

On 15 March 2023, the Independent Committee received a draft
forensic investigation report (“Forensic Investigation Report”)
from the Forensic Accountant, details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2023.

As at the date hereof, the Independent Committee is in the process
of engaging an internal control consultant to review the internal
control system of the Group taking the recommendations from the
Forensic Accountant. The Company will make further announcement
to update investors and shareholders once the internal control
review results are available.

Other than the above, the Board is not aware of any material
event requiring disclosure, that has taken place subsequent to 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

AR E B EIA2022F9 8268 ~ 202249
HA30H * 2022410 A248 ~ 2022412888 »
2022412 5138 K% 20234%1 A4B MRS
% 0 2022997150 » AARIEEAD G EE
BIRZ BRI 2ok B B 1+ 25 A1 A] BB TR 1R BRI HIliE
BREG(ZEN])  ZSHPRMR202251 A%
TR S RBERASHNI3EEETL(H1006E
BIT) °

MR202259R170 - EFGRENUBEVEZES
UEERAEZEN - BYZELRIENAETL
FEHITES - BNRIRMBELAE  TBEAE - 25
EERAEFREE

ZREANEENERNERKEFETR - thE
VEINEEBE ST N EZ B HETES
FE - N2022%128218 - BUEEEEZHEHR
R AREERAR(EES T ) ABILEE
SEHAT - A ZEETEAE S ([AER
B RABYZEGR2RABAETRRERE

=
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=1
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Definitions

" affiliate”

BB AL

"AGM"
[REFAE ]

"“Articles” or “Articles of Association”
[40A =k 4EA =240 A

"Beijing Nuokangda”
[HEmGaERE |

“Board”

[E%g]

“Cayman Islands Companies Law”

[FERSRANE]

"CG Code”
[bEER~FA

“Chairman”

[E/% ]

“China” or “the PRC”
[

"Company"” or “our Company" or
“the Company”
[ARE

"Demei Company”
[fE=nA ]

“Director(s)"”

[E%]

noon nou

"Group”, "our Group”,

u "nou

we”, “us”, or “our”

[ARSE ] [P Ikl e )

the Group”,

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person
BESHEEGIETE A TR A EE R EEIE S EE T A T EESEES HA
22 | ) LR AT B A £

annual general meeting of the Company

AARBIRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
RRAR201652 A1 BB RIHERAM B ZZIZ A A (B TEHERT)

Beijing Nuokangda Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. (Jt S5 R IEEE 2R R AL
3 BBR/AE]), a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC
IERAFEBEREROBRAR - BEBEHBUEEIMA I AA]

the board of Directors

E=g

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FEREEMIE22E (1961 F E35EM) ARDVE(2013FE5TM) K TKRAEET
S AR B A B AL T ek

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
as amended and supplemented from time to time, where references to code
provisions in this annual report refer to provisions in the CG Code that came
effect on 1 January 2022

AR BB SR O P B 1 2B ST R (S NERHERT R 7e ) » AFE S P 8
SFRIBC IR ALFE A 2022601 A1 B AR B 6T Al

Chairman of the Board

BEFEETR

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

ARSI - AREFFREES AP TRERAE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (B} 28 B4 G/ IR A 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March 2015
ERIABEITRARAT - N2015F3 816 B EHASHSTMERINER AR

27

Deyang Demei Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company*, a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC

EEEXBREXABRARAR  RAEEMKINEREERR

the director(s) of the Company
KARER

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRAF REMAMERFTAR(GERMKREBWNE AR ZER AR AH MM
= )RR A B E AT & (RIS E ) & & H %5
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Definitions 2%

“HK$"
iyl
"HKSE"”

[ &R P
“Hong Kong”
[&% ]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”

[EBBSERLRIE]

“human albumin solution”

[AMBZERESH&]

"Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences”

GEEEE

“Listing Rules”

[ LAl
“Main Board”
E
“"MPCM"

LR =t

“Mr. Huang”
[EAE

"QOctapharma”

[R5 53R

“PRC"

[hE

"Prospectus”

[ E ]

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEATEE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERMERZSER AT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEFEBRRITTHE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

ERTREBSFEBRLABRAR

Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes of total
protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250 grammes of
total protein per litre). The term human albumin solution refers to both products
or either one of them as the context requires

BRBEHEEN20% AMAERIFR(BASHEER200%) R25% AMA
ERISR(BAEHER250%) - AMMBEHISIRE TMEBEMRKESR —&
(BFxE)

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences
AP [ e R AR BB S P

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time
EEBRAES EWARR - ERHERT ST

Main Board of the HKSE
BB R FTER

marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and promotion of
pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers
REELENEE REHERETHEE  EEREERE

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (&##7), the Chairman, Executive Director, Co-Chief
Executive Officer and one of our controlling shareholders

|EWSEE - TF - RTEF - BETBRESFRERERR 2 —

Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
Confederation

Octapharma AG + AIs B AL D B R A E

the People’s Republic of China
FEE AR AR

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
RATM20165F2 29 R FIZEHBIRE
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Definitions 2%

“Reporting Period”
[#RE 5

“Risun”
[Risun ]

"RMB”
AR

“Secret Needle Technological Development

Agreements”

[ALE ST AT R

“SFO”
[ &7 KB 5]

“Share(s)”
[ A1 ]

“Share Option Scheme”

the financial year ended 31 December 2022
BZE2022F12 831 H LM BFE

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated in BVI on 16 January
2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang

Risun Investments Limited + 52201541 16 B E B MR R At S ML AR
NE - REAEZEERONB AR

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

AEHT - P EEE S

(i) the agreement in relation to the secret needle (1 year type) technology
development dated 7 November 2022 which are entered into between Sichuan
Sinco and Beijing Nuokangda; and (i) the agreement in relation to the technology
development of secret needle polycaprolactone filling material (molecular weight
20,000) dated 7 November 2022 which are entered into between Sichuan Sinco
and Beijing Nuokangda

()9 E R Bl R FE s AL S (1R AL) BT B 38 PraT 32 H B /820224F 11 A
7THEBE - R EREEIL REFRERLBH B CANEERM (D FE
28) BB AAET I A 812202211 A7B M5

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time

EREDIFESNEE S RPE RG] - ETRHERT ST

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each

AR R A A E E0.000 178 T H) & iR A

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February

[BERRfEET 2] 2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VIl to
the Prospectus
RAFR2016F2 A1 BB R RNHBIRES 8] - B X 2R B IR EH
A TE R —MRER —D A& R — 1 AT 2

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of Shares

[A%ER ] SVEST=PN

“U.S. dollars” or “US$” U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

[Z] ET ENBRERBEETES

s

In this annual report, the terms “associate,”, “close associate,” “connected
person,” “connected transaction,” “controlling shareholder,” “core
connected person,” “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context

otherwise requires.

s

i

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities,
regulations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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